Oriel

Outline Construction Management Plan

October 2020

File: ORL-INF-XX-XX-RP-PL-170-Outline Construction Management Plan















CONTACTS

Applicant: Moorfields Eye Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 62 City Road London EC1V 2PD T: +44 (0)20 7253 3411 W: www.moorfields.nhs.uk

UCL Institute of Ophthalmology Bidborough House 38-50 Bidborough Street London WC1H 9BT T: +44 (0) 20 7679 2000 W: www.ucl.ac.uk/ioo/

Moorfields Eye Charity Kemp House 152-160 City Road London EC1V 2NX T: +44 (0)20 7566 2565 W: www.moorfieldseyecharity.org.uk

Development Manager:

Moorfields Eye Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 62 City Road London EC1V 2PD T: +44 (0)20 7501 0688 W: www.moorfields.nhs.uk

Project Manager:

AECOM Aldgate Tower, 2 Leman Street London E1 8FA T: +44 (0)20 7061 7000 W: www.aecom.com

Lead Designer & Multi-Disciplinary

Design Team including Specialists: AECOM Aldgate Tower 2 Leman Street London E1 8FA T: +44 (0)20 7061 7000 W: www.aecom.com

Lead Architect:

Penoyre & Prasad The White Chapel Building 10 Whitechapel High Street London, E1 8QS T: +44 (0)20 7250 3477 W: penoyreprasad.com

Interiors / Landscape Architect:

White Arkitekter Östgötagatan 100 Box 4700 11692 Stockholm T: +46 8 402 25 00 W: whitearkitekter.com

Environmental Consultant:

AECOM Aldgate Tower, 2 Leman Street London E1 8FA T: +44 (0)20 7834 7267 W: www.aecom.com

Planning Consultant:

30 Warwick Street London W1B 5NH T: +44 (0) 207 493 4933 W: www.jll.co.uk

Heritage & Townscape:

KM Heritage 72 Pymer's Mead London SE21 8NJ T: +44(0) 20 8670 9057 W: www.kmheritage.com

Wind Microclimate:

BRE Watford Hertfordshire WD25 9XX T: +44(0) 333 321 8811 W: www.bregroup.com







INSTITUTE OF



CONTACTS

Rights of Light:

GIA The Whitehouse Belvedere Road LondonSE1 8GA T: +44 (0)20 7202 1400 W: www.gia.uk.com

Public Affairs Consultant:

London Communication Agency 8th Floor Berkshire House 168-173 High Holborn London WC1V 7AA T: +44 (0) 20 7612 8480 W: www.londoncommunications.co.uk

Client Accessibility Adviser:

Buro Happold 17 Newman Street London W1T 1PD T: +44 (0)2079 279 700 W: www.burohappold.com

Legal advisor:

CMS LLP Cannon Place 78 Cannon Street London EC4N 6A T: +44 (0)20 7367 3000 W: cms.law/en/gbr

Cost Consultant:

Gardiner & Theobald LLP 10 South Crescent London WC1E 7BD T: +44 (0)20 3597 1000 W: www.gardiner.com













∭JLL









BURO HAPPOLD



white

KMHeritage

bre







Prepared for:

Moorfields Eye Hospital NHS Foundation Trust UCL Institute of Ophthalmology Moorfields Eye Charity

Prepared by: AECOM Limited

© 2020 AECOM UK Limited. All Rights Reserved. All Rights Reserved.

This document has been prepared by AECOM Construction Services UK&I ("AECOM") for the sole use of our client (the "Client") in accordance with generally accepted consultancy principles, the budget for fees and the terms of reference agreed between AECOM and the Client. Any information provided by third parties and referred to herein has not been checked or verified by AECOM, unless otherwise expressly stated in the document. No third party may rely upon this document without the prior and express written agreement of AECOM.

Contents

1.	Intro	oduction	1
	1.1	Purpose and Scope of the CMP	1
	1.2	Introduction to the Site Location and Proposed Development	1
	1.3	Relationship to LBC Proforma	2
	1.4	Timeframe	2
	1.5	Structure of this Outline CMP	3
2.	Con	tact	4
	2.1	Overview	4
	2.2	Address Contacts	4
	2.3	Key Contacts	4
3.	The	Site	5
	3.2	Overview of the Site	5
	3.3	Description of the Construction Works	7
	3.4	Timeline	13
	3.5	Logistics Management	14
4.	Con	nmunity Liaison	16
	4.1	Overview of consultation	16
	4.2	Sensitive/affected dwellings affected	17
	4.3	Construction Working Group	18
	4.4	Complaints	19
	4.5	Schemes	20
	4.6	Neighbouring Sites	20
5.	Gen	eral Requirements	21
	5.1	Site Management and Framework	21
	5.2	Site Hoardings	25
	5.3	General Public	25
	5.4	Lighting	25
	5.5	Site Working Hours	26
	5.6	Additional Hours of Working	26
	5.7	Emergency Procedures	26
	5.8	Good Housekeeping	27
6.	Trar	nsport	28
	6.1	Overview of transport management during the demolition and construction phases	28
	62	Site Traffic Routing	20
	6.3	Control of Site Traffic, particularly at Peak Hours	20
	Cun	nulative effects of construction traffic	01
	64	Site access and earess	34
	6.5	Swept Paths	34
	6.6	Wheel Wash Management	34
	67	Loading and Unloading and Construction Vehicle Types	37
	6.8	On site Arrangements	36
	6.9	Vehicle loading and unloading Traffic Marshals	37
	0.0	Vollicio louding and amouding tranic Marchalo	

	6 10	Site act up	27
	0.10		37 07
	6.11	Parking bay suspensions and temporary traffic orders	37
	6.12	Occupation of the public highway	37
	6.13	Motor vehicle and/or cyclist diversions	37
	6.14	Scaffolding, hoarding, and associated pedestrian diversions	37
	6.15	Services	38
7.	Envii	ronment	38
	7.1	Environmental Management Overview	38
	7.2	Noise	39
	7.3	Air Quality	44
	7.4	Ecology and Biodiversity	50
	7.5	Arboriculture	51
	7.6	Archaeology	52
	7.7	Built Heritage, Townscape and Visual Impacts	52
	7.8	Ground Conditions	52
	7.9	Water Quality and Water Resources	54
	7.10	Waste and Materials Management	56
8.	Rela	tionship to the Development Control Requirements	58
9.	Refe	rences	59
Appe	endix	A Indicative Demolition and Construction Programme	
Appe	endix	B Noise Survey Results	
Anne	endix	C Dust Risk Assessment	

Tables

able 2-2 Key Contacts for the CMP	4
able 3-1: Indicative phasing for the construction programme	3
able 5-1: Summary of key roles and responsibilities	21
able 7-1. Noise Monitoring Locations	0
able B-1. ML1 Noise Data	
able B-2. ML2 Noise Data	
able B-3. ML3 Noise Data	
able B-4. ML4 Noise Data	
able C-1 Sensitivity of Receptors	
able C-2 Summary of Potential Dust Emission Magnitudes for Construction Phase Activities	•
able C-3 Summary Dust Risk Table	
able C-4 Proposed Construction Phase Dust Mitigation Measures	•••

Figures

Figure 3-1 Site location plan	7
Figure 3-2: Buildings to be Demolished	8
Figure 3-3: Extent of Basement [extract from the Basement Impact Assessment	
Report submitted with the planning application]	9
Figure 3-2: Buildings to be Demolished Figure 3-3: Extent of Basement [extract from the Basement Impact Assessment Report submitted with the planning application]	8 9

Figure 3-4: Illustration demonstrating the anticipated excavation and basement construction [extract from the Basement Impact Assessment Report submitted with	1
the planning application]	10
Figure 3-5: Indicative only - Ariel View of a Doka SCP 400 showing upper storage	
platform in use	.11
Figure 3-6: Example of spider crane from the floor above lifting panel into place	12
Figure 3-7: Examples of Off-Site Manufacture	13
Figure 6-1: Existing Site and Immediate Highway Context	29
Figure 6-2: Site and Surrounding Highway Network	30
Figure 6-3: Indicative HGV Traffic Route	31

1. Introduction

1.1 Purpose and Scope of the CMP

- 1.1.1 AECOM have been commissioned by Moorfields Eye Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, on behalf of Oriel¹, to develop an Outline Construction Management Plan (CMP) to be submitted in support of the planning application for the construction of a new facility that would allow the existing Moorfields Eye Hospital at City Road (Moorfields at City Road) and University College London (UCL) Institute of Ophthalmology (IoO) services at Bath Street to relocate into a new single building at the existing St Pancras Hospital (hereafter referred to as the 'Proposed Development').
- 1.1.2 This document provides an indicative strategy for the construction methodology, construction logistics and presents details of measures to be implemented to minimise impacts arising from construction of the Proposed Development ahead of appointing a Principal Contractor. To ensure the Principal Contractor, once appointed, follows the measures set out in this CMP, this CMP will be issued as part of the Employer's Requirements and the Principal Contractor will be required to refine this CMP and conclude all outstanding matters noted within this plan before starting works on site, seeking prior approval from all relevant authorities.
- 1.1.3 Full details of the Proposed Development and the scope the planning application are provided in the Design and Access Statement and Planning Statement which are submitted in support of the planning application.
- 1.1.4 This CMP is a 'Live' document and has been prepared to communicate the construction delivery strategy and methodology for the construction of the Proposed Development. The over-riding intent of this CMP is to ensure the delivery of a high-quality project in line with safe methods, sustainable initiatives and to develop a strong relationship with the local community, relevant authorities and other stakeholders. This CMP is supported by phasing plans and supplementary sketches/figures available at this point in time, and will be updated and further details provided by the Principal Contractor, once appointed.

1.2 Introduction to the Site Location and Proposed Development

1.2.1 The site of the Proposed Development (hereafter referred to as the 'Site') comprises the north-western part of the St Pancras Hospital site and sections of St Pancras Way and Granary Street, and covers an area of approximately 1.33 ha. The Site is located within the London Borough of Camden (LBC). A description of the Site is provided in Section 3 of this report.

¹ Oriel is a joint venture between Moorfields Eye Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, University College London Institute of Ophthalmology and Moorfields Eye Charity

- 1.2.2 The Proposed Development comprises a single building, between seven and ten storeys in height (including Ground Level and Lower Ground Level, as well as plant at Roof Level), as well as provision of public realm at ground level, blue badge parking, and vehicular drop off points along St Pancras Way. The building is arranged around a central atrium and connection space. There is also a roof terrace on the Sixth Floor Level on the south-western corners of the building.
- 1.2.3 The Proposed Development will be up to 69.15 metres (m) Above Ordnance Datum (AOD) in height and will have a gross external area of approximately 48,851 square metres (sq m) and a gross internal area of approximately 46,468 sq m.
- 1.2.4 The Proposed Development will comprise a mix of uses including clinical, research and education purposes, including accident and emergency (A&E) department, outpatients, operating theatres, research areas, education space, café and retail areas, facilities management, office space and plant space.
- 1.2.5 The 2.02 hectare (ha) site of St Pancras Hospital is currently owned by Camden and Islington NHS Foundation Trust (C&I Trust). King's Cross Central Limited Partnership ('KCCLP') is the development partner of the C&I Trust and they intend to submit a planning application for redevelopment of the remaining part of the St Pancras Hospital site in 2021. The existing mental health inpatient wards located at St Pancras Hospital are planned to move to a new, purpose-built facility next to the existing Highgate Mental Health Centre and the Whittington Hospital.

1.3 Relationship to LBC Proforma

- 1.3.1 This Outline CMP has been prepared to align with the Construction/ Demolition Management Plan Proforma published by LBC (Ref. 1). Where appropriate, reference is made to the Proforma throughout this document.
- 1.3.2 Consideration has also been given to the following LBC guidance documents:
 - Camden's Minimum Requirements for Building Construction (Ref. 2) (hereafter referred to as Camden's Minimum Requirements); and
 - Guide for Contractors Working in Camden (Ref. 3).

1.4 Timeframe

1.4.1 As this Outline CMP is being submitted at the same time as the planning application, it does not follow the timeframe set out in the LBC Construction/ Demolition Management Plan Proforma (Ref. 1) which states that the draft CMP is submitted once planning permission has been obtained. In addition, certain elements of the CMP are unknown at this stage and will be confirmed on appointment of the Principal Contractor. As such, this document provides an indicative strategy for the construction methodology, construction logistics and associated assumptions relating to construction of the Proposed Development and sets out the transport and environmental management and control measures that will be implemented during the works.

1.4.2 Once the Principal Contractor is appointed, this Outline CMP will be updated, and the Principal Contractor will conclude all outstanding matters noted within this plan prior to commencement of works.

1.5 Structure of this Outline CMP

- 1.5.1 This Outline CMP is based on established good management practice and includes the following information:
 - Key Contacts;
 - Description of the Site and construction works, including proposed timeline and logistics;
 - Details of consultation undertaken to date and proposed consultation and community engagement during construction;
 - General Requirements;
 - Transport Management; and
 - Environmental Management, Mitigation and Monitoring.

2. Contact

2.1 Overview

2.1.1 This section provides the contact details for the Outline CMP, where available, in accordance with questions 1-5 of the LBC Construction/ Demolition Management Plan Proforma (Ref. 1). These details will be updated once the Principal Contractor has been appointed,

2.2 Address Contacts

2.2.1 The full postal address of the Site and the planning reference relating to the construction works is:

Address: St. Pancras Hospital, 4 St Pancras Way, London NW1 0PE

Planning reference: Not available at this stage, a planning reference will be provided once the planning application is validated by LBC. To be updated by the Principal Contractor.

2.3 Key Contacts

2.3.1 The key contact details for the CMP will be provided by the Principal Contractor, once appointed, and provided in a table similar to Table 2-1:

Table 2-1 Key Contacts for the CMP

Task	Name	Address	Email	Phone	
CMP Manager	To be confirmed				
Site Project Manager	To be confirmed				
Community Liaison Manager	To be confirmed				
Main Contractor	To be confirmed				

3. The Site

3.1.1 This section of the Outline CMP provides a summary of the Site, as set out in questions 6 to 8 of the LBC Construction/ Demolition Management Plan Proforma (Ref. 1).

3.2 Overview of the Site

- 3.2.1 The Site comprises an area of 1.33 ha within the existing St Pancras Hospital site (2.02 ha) and is situated in the heart of London, close to several public transport hubs. The Site is bounded by Granary Street to the north and east, the remainder of the St Pancras Hospital and St Pancras Gardens and Pancras Road to the south, and the A5202 St Pancras Way to the west. The Site also includes sections of Granary Street and St Pancras Way. The Ordnance Survey grid reference for the centre of the Site is TQ 29689 83612.
- 3.2.2 St Pancras Gardens, a Site of Borough Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC) is located 45 m to the south of the Site. The Site located to the west of Regent's Canal and Camden High Street is approximately 800m to the west.
- 3.2.3 The Site has sufficient space to accommodate the Proposed Development and is located near to other major health and research centres, the main campus of UCL and eye charities, such as Guide Dogs and the Royal National Institute of Blind People (RNIB), and is also within the Knowledge Quarter². This location presents the potential to build with minimal disruption to current NHS services, which would continue at the existing City Road site until the new centre would open.
- 3.2.4 St Pancras Hospital is currently owned by C&I NHS Trust and comprises seventeen buildings of varying ages and construction, of which six are located within the Site and will be demolished in order to construct the Proposed Development. The remainder of the St Pancras Hospital has been identified for future development. King's Cross Central Limited Partnership ('KCCLP') is the development partner of the C&I Trust and they intend to submit a planning application for redevelopment of the remaining part of the St Pancras Hospital site in 2021. However until this time the hospital buildings in the wider St Pancras Hospital will remain in their current use whilst construction of the Proposed Development is being undertaken.
- 3.2.5 The St Pancras Hospital is located within the Kings Cross / St Pancras Conservation Area, which extends south from the Site and includes Kings Cross and St Pancras railway stations. To the north and east of the Site is the Regent's Canal Conservation Area. There are no listed buildings within the Site, the closest heritage asset to the Site is the Registered Park and Garden, St Pancras Gardens, approximately 100m to the south of the Site. The wider St. Pancras Gardens site also includes 10 Grade II Listed buildings, two Grade II* Listed buildings and one Grade I Listed building. Notwithstanding, the Kings Cross / St Pancras Conservation Area Statement

² The Knowledge Quarter is the focal point for one of the greatest knowledge clusters anywhere in the world, located in a small area around King's Cross, the Euston Road and Bloomsbury

(Ref. 4) notes that a number of buildings within St Pancras Hospital (including the Estates and Facilities Building and the Kitchen Block within the Site) as well as its perimeter wall are positive contributors to the Kings Cross / St Pancras Conservation Area. The Bloomsbury Day Centre within the Site is noted as being a negative contributor to the Kings Cross / St Pancras Conservation Area.

- 3.2.6 Immediately to the South lies St Pancras Gardens (Grade II registered park/garden, HE Ref. 1001689) and St Pancras Old Church (Grade II* listed HE ref. 1113246). These gardens are also designated as public open space. In addition, the Grade II listed St Pancras Coroner's Court lies to the southeast of the Site, on the eastern side of the gardens abutting Granary Street. There is one mature tree within the Site which is protected by a tree preservation order, it is located on the western Site boundary near the vehicular entrance (ref. C402 2003). Further details are provided in the Tree Survey Report which is submitted with the planning application.
- 3.2.7 The Site location plan in Figure 3-1 below shows the extent of the Site boundary for the planning application [edged red and referred to as the Development Zone Boundary].

Figure 3-1 Site location plan



3.3 Description of the Construction Works

- 3.3.1 The Proposed Development comprises a single building which will accommodate a new eye care centre, research and education facilities, spread over seven to ten storeys, with a Ground Level and a Lower Ground Level and a roof terrace at sixth floor.
- 3.3.2 The Site is approximately 1.33 ha, and includes areas of St Pancras Way and Granary Street. The proposed building will be constructed over 0.792 ha within the Site boundary.
- 3.3.3 A description of the anticipated construction works is as follows:

Demolition

- 3.3.4 The following section sets out the likely demolition works to be undertaken on the Site. The diagram below (Figure 3-2) illustrates the existing buildings (shown as numbered) which will be demolished.
- 3.3.5 Once appointed, the Principal Contractor will review the sequencing of demolition in this area. However, demolition activity, following full vacation of the building and site set up, will commence with asbestos survey and asbestos removal. This will be followed by soft strip, the erection of protective scaffolding prior to the start of demolition.
- 3.3.6 It is envisaged at this stage, demolition activity would be undertaken in the following sequence, working from west to east across the Site:
 - Building 5 (Post Room and Former Mortuary), Building 1 (Bloomsbury Day Centre), Building 2 (Ash House), Building 4 (Jules Thorn Day Centre), Building 3 (Camley Centre - Estates and Facilities building) and Building 6 (Kitchen Block).
 - The removal of the slabs, basement and foundations.



Figure 3-2: Buildings to be Demolished

Foundations and Basement Construction

3.3.7 The key to the successful construction of the basement is a safe, finely planned, efficient execution of the excavation, raft and basement construction. This will allow the fastest possible release of the critical path core and slabs for the superstructure. The general proposed approach to constructing the basement is set out in the Basement Impact Assessment Report which is submitted with the planning application.

- 3.3.8 At this stage outline information has only been provided on the foundations and the basement, and no detailed geotechnical information is available. Therefore the following assumptions have been made, which will be reviewed by the Principal Contractor as further information becomes available.
- 3.3.9 Figure 3-3 below illustrates the extent of the proposed basement.

Figure 3-3: Extent of Basement [extract from the Basement Impact Assessment Report submitted with the planning application]



- 3.3.10 Following the completion of the demolition works, the Site will be prepared for the construction of the basement. Steel sheet piles are to be installed adajcent to Granary Street and along the internal road adajcent to the southern boundary, followed by installation of the pile mat and piling. Excavation will be undertaken to the required levels of the lower ground floor. An earth batter shall be used to provide lateral support for the steel sheet piled wall.
- 3.3.11 It is currently anticipated that one piling rig will be used to install the foundations and three lufer tower cranes will be required to construct the basement and the superstructure. The exact location of the tower cranes will be determined at a later stage by the Principal Contractor. However, the indicative sequence of works is illustrated in Figure 3-4 below.

Figure 3-4: Illustration demonstrating the anticipated excavation and basement construction [extract from the Basement Impact Assessment Report submitted with the planning application]



Ground Floor

- 3.3.12 Upon completion of the basement and lower ground floor, the ground floor will be constructed.
- 3.3.13 The ground floor slab is assumed to be a reinforced concrete slab which varies in level and is likely to be constructed of 350mm, 400mm and 500mm deep slabs.

Main Tower Core Construction and Floors

- 3.3.14 It is anticipated that 'Jumpforming' the core walls may be the Principal Contractor's preferred choice and that they would aim to keep the core three to four levels above the highest level concrete floor slabs. This is considered to be the best option at this point in time as it would keep the tower cranes at a reasonable height above both the core walls and floor slabs, the cranes can oversail the core giving additional flexibility, and the concrete placing booms can service both the slabs and core walls, minimising the plant required. This would also allow cranes to be placed in the core if necessary to assist the construction. The Principal Contractor will confirm the preferred option on appointment.
- 3.3.15 A fully enclosed system with a working platform on top that can be used for additional storage of materials, in particular reinforcement, such as the Doka SCP system, is proposed. The full enclosure and upper storage deck will minimise the loss of working time in the event of high winds which would preclude use of the cranes. Another advantage with this type of system is

that if delays occur then it is possible to continue the floor slabs up to the base of the lower edge of the platform.

3.3.16 An indicative view of a crane showing upper storage platform in use is illustrated on Figure 3-5.

Figure 3-5: Indicative only - Ariel View of a Doka SCP 400 showing upper storage platform in use



Façade

- 3.3.17 A leading façade contractor will be engaged to ensure the correct approach for the main areas of façades is adopted. Currently, it is assumed the following steps will be taken to construct the façade:
 - Lower Ground and Ground Floor up to Level 1; a high quality stick system to the reception areas, lobbies and atrium.
 - Unitised cladding system for 'typical floors' from Level 2 to Level 8.
 - There will be different types of façade, which will be shipped from the manufacturer directly to Site, with 'just in time' deliveries direct from the factory on flat bed Fleet Operator Recognition Scheme (FORS) accredited lorries.
 - The panels will be packed in purpose made shrink wrapped metal crates capable of being unloaded by elephantine hoist, forklift or crane.
 - The actual installation of the unitised panels will be either by manipulator working from the same floor as the panels to be installed or spider crane from the floor above, lifting from a launching table on the installation floor, as shown below. The stick system will be accessed from the ground floor via a variety of systems. An example of a spider crane in use is provided by Figure 3-6.

Figure 3-6: Example of spider crane from the floor above lifting panel into place



Fit Out

- 3.3.18 It is expected that fit out works would start on Level 1 once the temporary waterproofing has been installed to Level 6 and the external cladding works are complete two floors above. The first fit out activities will comprise surveying the structure, installing high level MEP, then setting out walls.
- 3.3.19 Following the high level MEP installation, internal blockwork, the dry lining and first fix services will begin to the ground floor. Installation of the MEP modular elements of fan coil units, cable trays and duct work will follow. Connections will then be made, tested, witnessed and certified and voids closed up.
- 3.3.20 Taping and jointing and a mist coat will follow, with any stone, carpentry and joinery, doors and finishes trades, installation of specilist equipment along with commissioning, snagging and de-snagging, pre inspections and client inspections.

Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing Services Delivery

- 3.3.21 Once all wet trades have completed, concreting, blockwork, the MEP installation can commence in the lower ground floor and ground floor. Plant will be positioned and loaded out as soon as back propping has been removed and unpacked as soon as the area is watertight to allow installation. A prefabricated risers solution will be adopted for all areas as well as the use of off site manufactured MEP Modules to all levels (example in Figure 3-7).
- 3.3.22 For instance, all common parts horizontal distribution (both mechanical and electrical containment) can be sub-divided into 3m sections. These will be lifted up the building utilising the hoist and manoeuvred across the floor plate into the core before being raised up and fixed to the structural soffit.

Figure 3-7: Examples of Off-Site Manufacture



Testing and Commissioning

- 3.3.23 Once fit out is completed and MEP is installed, testing and commisioning phase of the building will be undertaken.
- 3.3.24 A Commissioning Plan will be developed by the Principal Contractor detailing the method of commissioning which will include a commissioning programme identifying key dates, commissioning tolerances, a list of method statements, off site testing dates, commissioning principal meeting dates, handover requirements, building control and fire officer requirments and interface points. A commissioning manager will be appointed to conduct and chair the commissioning activities addressing perceived commisioning issues ring all of the commissioning activities to a close on behalf of the Principal Contractor.

3.4 Timeline

3.4.1 Table 3-1 below provides the indicative phasing for the demolition and construction programme. Further detail is provided in the indicative construction programme which is included in Appendix A.

Phase	Proposed Start Date	Proposed End Date	Duration - months
Total Construction Period	01 Feb 22	4 July 25	41
Demolition	01 Feb 22	13 Oct 22	8.5
Enabling works, Basement, Lower & Ground Floor	26 August 22	23 Nov 23	15
Superstructure	27 Oct 23	23 May 24	7
Fit Out Duration	2 Feb 24	4 July 25	17

Table 3-1: Indicative phasing for the construction programme

3.5 Logistics Management

- 3.5.1 This section provides further detail on how the demolition and construction will be managed and the supply chain controlled.
- 3.5.2 It is envisaged that the following four Key Logistics Principles will be followed:
 - 1. There will be one delivery process and one central traffic control system.
 - 2. There will be a team who will monitor planned and actual road movements and intervene when necessary to ensure compliance.
 - 3. There will be the one point of contact for the emergency services in relation to material movement planning and implementation.
 - 4. All material requirements and deliveries will be controlled within the constraints of available delivery times.

Main Issues and Challenges

- 3.5.3 The main issues and challenges relating to logistics which are anticipated for the demolition of the existing buildings on the Site and construction of the Proposed Development include:
 - Working within the St Pancras Hospital_whereby certain departments are occupied 24/7. This would make it difficult to plan construction works that could potentially require temporary disruption to a neighbouring building and will require, from the outset, a comprehensive solution to minimise noise and dust nuisance and manage access in a sensitive and considerate manner. This shall be determined and agreed with immediate neighbours and various hospital departments.
 - Shutdowns of utilities serving healthcare systems such as domestic water, heat, ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC), and medical gas are sometimes necessary. Avoiding shutdowns is always the better option, but for most situations where this is not feasible, ensuring that proper communication with all involved parties and understanding the full extent of the shutdown is very important in order to prevent unexpected issues.
 - Safety and the overall positive experience for the patients, visitors, staff, and contractors is a key priority. Understanding that the construction works can unsettle the overall flow traffic to the neighbouring hospital, it is important to put into place a plan to minimise disruption and ensure that the necessary staff from the adjoining hospital, who understand how it works, are party to planning conversations to provide constructive input and suggestions.
 - Pedestrian Access The neighbouring hospital buildings are old and have complicated access routes used by patients and guests who may not be familiar with the facility, and often the staff as well as the guests are emotionally vulnerable or stressed. Adding to the complexity with construction detours, system shutdowns, and just by being nearby to an active construction site in this already 'highly charged' situation

requires the highest levels of planning, patience and understanding from all members of the construction team including delivery staff and subcontractors. It will be necessary to put into place after agreement with the existing hospital a plan and route which causes the least disruption to patients and guest.

 Construction Traffic – Construction vehicle access must be arranged into the construction site so that vehicles and pedestrians, using separated site routes, can move around safely. The complexity of identifying routes for the people and vehicles using them, in suitable locations and with sufficient capacity is a key challenge. A site specific Traffic Management Plan will be prepared by the Principal Contractor to arrange and coordinate vehicle access routes in conjunction with pedestrians.

Management of equipment and materials and waste principles

Review of alternative methods to transport materials or waste

- 3.5.4 The use rail to transport materials to and from site was considered. However, the location of the Site does not lend itself in making this a viable option and this option is no longer being considered as the Site is not immediately adjacent to any railway and has no railway siding.
- 3.5.5 The use of the nearby canal to transport materials to and from site was considered. However, an unloading dock local to the site is not available and therefore this method of transportation is no longer being considered as an option.

Cranes and Equipment

3.5.6 Once the piling and lower ground floor/basement excavation has been completed tower cranes will be delivered via 16.5m articulated vehicles, which will be delivered via the routes described in section 6. A mobile crane will be used to erect the tower crane that will be used to construct the proposed building.

Material Storage and Security

- 3.5.7 The amount of materials stored on site will be minimised as far as possible by the Principal Contractor.
- 3.5.8 A 'Just in Time' delivery policy will be adopted by the Principal Contractor to ensure no more than 5 days' worth of materials are stored on site. All materials will be stored within the Site boundary and no materials will be left outside the Site boundary after normal hours. The Principal Contractor will develop a strategy to show the provision of on-site facilities for equipment, tools and materials that would reduce the number of trips to site. These facilities will be located entirely within the Site boundary.
- 3.5.9 The Principal Contractor shall keep the Site secure using robust hoarding and secure card/fob reader accessible turnstiles for entry, with security guards based inside any site entrances. All delivery access points shall be locked at night and shall be security patrolled during site working hours.

Staff Travel Plans

- 3.5.10 There are a number of ways for the construction workforce to travel to the Site during the construction period via public transport. Several bus routes serve bus stops within the immediate vicinity of the Site. St Pancras Station and Mornington Crescent Underground Station are also within walking distance of the Site.
- 3.5.11 No parking for construction staff will be provided on site and staff will be advised to access the Site via public transport. Given the extent of public transport provision in the immediate area, it is anticipated that few construction staff will access the Site via privately owned vehicles.
- 3.5.12 The Principal Contractor will be responsible for encouraging their workers to use sustainable methods of public transport to the site.
- 3.5.13 Meetings will be arranged to ensure staff and visitors accessing the Site can do so via the public transport system and public transport information should be provided on a notice board within the Site, to ensure that visitors and staff are aware of their travel options. This system will help promote the use of public transport.
- 3.5.14 Staggered shift patterns for the various trades and specialists employed on site will ensure that the impact of any workforce traffic is spread over a number of hours and will therefore have a negligible effect on the capacity of the surrounding road and public transport network.

4. Community Liaison

4.1 **Overview of consultation**

- 4.1.1 This section of the Outline CMP provides a summary of the community liaison, as set out in questions 10 to 14 of the LBC Construction/ Demolition Management Plan Proforma document (Ref. 1).
- 4.1.2 To date, the combined partnership of Moorfields Eye Hospital (Moorfields), UCL IoO, and Moorfields Eye Charity (MEC) (the 'Partnership') have held two periods of consultation.
- 4.1.3 The first consultation, between 24 May and 16 September 2019, gave patients, staff and the general public the opportunity to comment on the proposal to create a new centre for eye care, research and education in the St Pancras area, called Oriel.
- 4.1.4 The results of the consultation are available at the following website:

https://oriel-london.org.uk/consultation-documents/

- 4.1.5 In summary, the Partnership received around 4,600 contributions during the consultation through various ways including discussion groups, emails, phone calls and the consultation survey.
- 4.1.6 A draft version of the consultation findings report was published at the end of October 2019 which gave people the opportunity to review the feedback and

feed in any comments that they think may have been missed. This feedback has been incorporated into the final version of the report.

- 4.1.7 The independent analysis of the survey results indicates that 73% of respondents agree that a new centre is needed and 73% agree with St Pancras Hospital as the preferred location.
- 4.1.8 A second consultation by the Partnership was recently launched. A public planning consultation on the early designs for a proposed new integrated eye care, research and education centre on the site of the St Pancras Hospital is underway, which allows the local residents and businesses to find out more about the proposals and give their feedback on the early designs.
- 4.1.9 The team held two online public discussion meetings on Tuesday 18 August and Monday 24 August, from 6-7pm.
- 4.1.10 Further consultation will be undertaken as the project progresses, including once planning permission has been obtained, and will include meetings with local residents and businesses prior to the Principal Contractor submitting further details to LBC relating to this Outline CMP.

4.2 Sensitive/affected dwellings affected

- 4.2.1 One month prior to starting works on Site, the Principal Contractor will undertake communication with residents and local businesses. This will become a regular newsletter which will be issued to the surrounding residents and businesses to keep all parties informed about the progress to date and forthcoming events. Further details are provided in Section 4.
- 4.2.2 The nearest sensitive receptors (within 100m) of the Site include the following:
 - Visitors and workers at St Pancras Hospital and St Pancras Coroner's Court on Camley Street (adjacent to the south-east corner of the hospital);
 - Residents of Unite Student Accommodation and buildings on St Pancras Way opposite the Site to the west;
 - Residents of Goldington Buildings on Royal College Street, west of St Pancras Way;
 - Residents along Goldington Crescent Gardens on Goldington Crescent, to the south of the Site, south of Pancras Road;
 - Residents in house boats located within 100m north of the Site along Regent's Canal;
 - Staff within the London Bioscience Innovation Centre on Royal College Street to the west of the Site;
 - Staff and students within the Royal Veterinary College on Royal College Street;
 - Abacus Belsize Primary School on Camley Street to the north east of the Site;

- Future residents of the 101 and 103 Camley Street developments to the east and north of the Site (currently under construction); and
- Future residents of dwellings, occupiers of commercial units and office space at 2 6 St Pancras Way to the north of the Site.

4.3 **Construction Working Group**

- 4.3.1 On site communication and neighbour liaison (in conjunction with the LBC) will be managed by the appointed Principal Contractor. The Principal Contractor will appoint a Logistics and Neighbourhood Liaison Officer (NLO) to liaise with the LBC, local primary schools, residents, businesses and other interested parties to keep them informed of progress on the Site and forthcoming activities which may affect them.
- 4.3.2 During the construction works, there will be frequent communication with residents and local businesses. A regular newsletter will be issued to the surrounding residents and businesses to keep all parties informed about the progress to date and forthcoming events. Any abnormal activities (such as road closures, wide load deliveries) will be notified by way of supplementary letter issued to the relevant local contacts in advance of the activities taking place.
- 4.3.3 In addition, the appointed Principal Contractor will:
 - Provide a named point of contact, to the neighbouring residents and relevant statutory LBC.
 - Establish a complaints register, which will be logged and made available for inspection, and investigate complaints.
 - Display project information and key contacts on the site hoarding.
- 4.3.4 The Principal Contractor will update the local community on construction progress via quarterly local community progress meeting sessions. It is anticipated that these regular updates on construction activities will be held in a nearby community centre, potentially on the Hospital grounds, be open to the general public and affected local residents and businesses, and will likely include:
 - Issuing regular letter-drops / web-updates (on the London Borough of Camden website if allowable);
 - Organising regular meeting sessions in vicinity;
 - Reporting on street cleaning activities around the Site;
 - Addressing any neighbourly concerns raised at previous meetings;
 - Informing residents of any upcoming noisy works such as demolitions/ foundations and other significant construction works;
 - Liaison and co-ordination of construction traffic activities with the immediate neighbours, local Schools, and other nearby sensitive establishments;
 - Notice of any temporary traffic management measures in surrounding roads;

- Overall programme reporting and anticipated completion date.
- 4.3.5 In accordance with the requirements of the Considerate Constructors Scheme (CCS), (see below) and being a good neighbour, the Principal Contractor will conduct full negotiations with the Partnership, adjacent landlords and tenants to ensure that there is a shared philosophy to deliveries, pick-ups, and access. An agreed route for communication with all parties will be agreed and refined where necessary for individual needs.

4.4 Complaints

- 4.4.1 The Principal Contractor will keep all neighbouring properties and the local community and others informed about unavoidable disturbance such as from unavoidable noise, dust, or disruption of traffic.
- 4.4.2 A board showing key project contacts shall be displayed prominently on the site boundary; this is to ensure that problems can be rectified quickly, and that residents and others can channel their questions and complaints to the 'Construction Manager' from the Principal Contractor who has the authority to take action.
- 4.4.3 The Contact Board shall include the following information:
 - The title 'Contact Board'
 - Name of the Principal Contractor, email address and postal address and person to whom correspondence should be addressed.
 - Name of the Construction Manager.
 - Month and year of completion of works.
 - Names and telephone numbers of staff who can take immediate action, so that contact can be made at any time.
- 4.4.4 Occupiers in the vicinity who may be affected by the works from the Site will be notified of the nature of the works, a contact name, telephone number (including that to be used outside normal working hours), and address to which any enquiries should be directed also in writing.
- 4.4.5 The telephone number (and any changes to it) shall be publicised widely within the local community affected by the works. It shall also be notified to the Noise and Licensing Enforcement Team at LBC.
- 4.4.6 Should noise/vibration/dust complaints arise from the building construction/building works, these complaints will be recorded in a complaint's register and made available to the LBC, if requested. The complaint register shall provide information on day, time, details of complaint, details of monitoring carried out and any additional mitigation works.
- 4.4.7 Should complaints be received concerning works/activities, then the affected works/activities being the cause of complaint will be immediately investigated and if necessary, must cease, until such time as further agreement to work is negotiated.

4.5 Schemes

- 4.5.1 The Principal Contractor will be required to operate in accordance with the CCS, the FORS and the Construction Logistics and Cyclist Safety (CLOCS) scheme whilst working on site.
- 4.5.2 The construction of the Proposed Development will be undertaken in accordance with the CCS with targets set for minimum performance, including CLOCS monitoring.
- 4.5.3 In addition, the Principal Contractor will also be required to register the project under the CSS with a minimum target score of 4 in each section of the scheme's site code for Considerate Practice. For instance, and in accordance with the CCS requirements, and being a good neighbour, the Principal Contractor will conduct full negotiations with the adjacent landlords and tenants to ensure that there is a shared philosophy to deliveries, pick-ups, and access.
- 4.5.4 This will also include:
 - An agreed route for communication with all parties will be agreed and refined where necessary for individual needs.
 - As part of the CCS scheme regular inspections will be carried out and subsequent reports will be distributed as part of the contractor's monthly report.
 - Details of the CCS registration number and confirmation that the guide for 'Contractors Working in Camden' is fully understood will be provided by the Principal Contractor once appointed.

4.6 **Neighbouring Sites**

- 4.6.1 As part of the construction processes Principal Contractor will meet with the LBC Environmental Health and Highway representatives and key members from the local community to refine methods of working and measures to minimise disruption. As part of this liaison, regular meetings will be held to ensure they are kept informed of the progress and any comments received are logged and actioned as a result of the works, not only about the Proposed Development but also regarding issues or concerns about neighbouring construction sites.
- 4.6.2 To mitigate disturbance the Principal Contractor will identify all other active construction sites in proximity to the Site prior to commencing work.
- 4.6.3 The Principal Contractor will appoint a Logistics and Neighbourhood Liaison Officer (NLO) to liaise with the LBC, local primary schools, residents, businesses and other construction sites/interested parties to keep them informed of progress on site and forthcoming activities which may affect them.
- 4.6.4 The Principal Contractor shall attend and participate in a Construction Logistics Forum or similar local forums as may be suggested by the LBC to explore ways of coordinating development activities across the Site and in the wider area for the duration of the demolition/construction programme.

5. General Requirements

5.1 Site Management and Framework

Site Management – Roles and Responsibilities

5.1.1 The successful implementation of the CMP and management of potential environmental impacts is reliant on clear definition and understanding of requirements among Project Team staff. An outline of the key roles and responsibilities is provided below. The Principal Contactor will identify and provide contact details for the roles identified in Table 5-1 below.

Role	Key Responsibilities
Client	 Responsibility for appointment / allocation of the Principal Contractor, Project Manager and Environmental Manager; Check that the Principal Contractor is competent and has allocated sufficient resources to allow delivery of the CMP; Co-ordinate communication with key stakeholders and other third parties, as required; Agree and set construction environmental targets for the Principal Contractor; and Review findings of the monitoring programme, and direct Principal Contractor / Environmental Manager as required.
Environmental Consultant	 Advise Client on environmental related matters, as required; Undertake external audits on the implementation of the Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP), as required; and Provide specialist technical input to key areas such as Noise and Vibration; Air Quality to discharge any planning conditions etc.
Principal Contractor Project Manager	 Responsibility for the day to day management of the demolition and construction activities on site, ensuring the activities adhere to the actions set out in the CMP, including: Update and management of the CMP; Delivering a system of work such that the construction activities are carried out in compliance with the CMP; Checking the qualifications and competence of subcontractors for appointment; Delivering environmental awareness training in conjunction with the Environmental Manager for all workers, including an induction for all site workers / contractors to support the implementation of the CMP; Agreeing and setting construction environmental targets with the Client; and Ensuring that the construction environmental targets/ objectives of the CMP are being achieved and that are not contrary to any relevant legal requirements. Identifying and implementing any corrective actions and opportunities for continuous improvement to meet construction environmental targets. Providing oversight of the demolition / construction activities to ensure these undertaken are in accord with contract; Monitoring the performance of sub-contractors and provide direction as percessary:

Table 5-1: Summary of key roles and responsibilities

Role	Key Responsibilities
	 Monitoring the demolition / construction programme in conjunction with the Environmental Manager to ensure CMP actions are integrated into it;
	 With the Environmental Manager, undertaking a regular audit of the CMP and report findings – all audits will be followed up noting any completed actions, further work needed and actions that are not being complied with; and
	 Undertaking corrective actions in the event of breaches of environmental requirements.
Principal Contractor Site Manager/ Foreman(s)	 Lead responsibility for the practical construction of the Proposed Development, including day to day co-ordination of the contractors; Co-ordinate with the Project Manager and Environmental Manager for the management of construction activities in compliance with the requirements of the CMP; Implement and maintain environmental controls on site; Ensure that all environmental incidents, near misses and observations are reported and actioned as appropriate; and Maintain waste register and ensure correct waste management
	procedures are being implemented on site.
Principal Contractor Environmental Manager	Co-ordinate monitoring and reporting of the implementation environmental management, through liaison with the Project Manager, Site Foreman and other parties, as appropriate, to ensure that the works are implemented in accordance with the environmental management commitments, including:
	 Preparation of the CEMP following the receipt of planning consent;
	 Regularly reviewing and updating the CEMP and other complementary plans and procedures to ensure they are compliant with the CEMP;
	 Applying for any environmental consents and licences required to ensure compliance with legal requirements and communicating the requirements to the site construction team;
	 Monitoring the implementation of the CEMP, including undertaking regular site inspections, monthly audits and reviewing Construction Method Statements/ Risk Assessments and Method Statements (RAMS) to ensure that any relevant requirements of the CEMP have been carried over;
	 Reviewing and reporting against the construction environmental targets and identifying any corrective actions and opportunities for continuous improvement;
	 Ensuring that any environmental records to demonstrate compliance with the CEMP are kept and maintained;
	 Ensuring that the results of any internal audits of the CEMP and site inspections are reported back to the Client on a monthly basis;
	 Preparing and undertaking environmental awareness training for the site team (e.g. environmental input to site induction, Toolbox Talks etc);
	 Monitoring the compliance of sub-contractors against the requirements of the CEMP;
	• Co-ordinating the technical and environmental specialists as part of the implementation of the monitoring regime to monitor and record the impacts arising from the construction activities;

Role	Key Responsibilities
	 Acting as the first point of contact for any environmental issues encountered by the Principal Contractor – Investigate all environmental incidents, and ensure they are recorded and reported, with corrective / preventative actions are undertaken; Contribute to communication on environmental matters between project team and relevant consultees / stakeholders; and Providing and collating evidence for the Considerate Constructors Scheme, BREEAM or any other relevant external assessments.
Sub-Contractors (where relevant)	 Comply with the relevant requirements of the CMP and the CEMP; Work to agreed plans, methods and procedures to minimise environmental impacts; Understand the importance of avoiding pollution on-site, including noise and dust, and how to respond in the event of an incident to avoid or limit environmental impact; Report all incidents immediately; and Monitor the workplace for potential environmental risks and escalate through the appropriate systems if any are observed.

Top 10 Site Safety Rules

5.1.2 Construction sites are dangerous places to work. A list of top 10 construction site safety rules to keep everyone safe is provided below. This will be developed further by the Principal Contractor and shared with all parties and subcontractors.

1. Wear your PPE on site at all times

PPE is your last line of defence should you come into contact with a hazard on site. Wear your hard hat, safety boots and Hi-Viz vest as a minimum, along with any additional PPE required for the task being carried out.

2. Do not start work without an induction.

Each site has its own unique hazards and work operations. Make sure you know what is happening so that you can work safely. Your induction is important, don't start without one.

3. Keep a tidy site

Construction work is messy. Remember to keep your work area tidy throughout your shift to reduce the number of slip and trip hazards. Pay particular attention to high risk areas such as access and escape routes.

4. Do not put yourself or others at risk

You are responsible for your own behaviour. Construction sites are dangerous places to work. Make sure you remain safety aware throughout your shift.

5. Follow safety signs and procedures

Your employer should ensure a risk assessment is carried out for activities. Make sure you read and understand it. Follow signs and procedures – control measures are put in place for your safety.

6. Never work in unsafe areas

Make sure your work area is safe. Don't work at height without suitable guard rails or other fall prevention. Don't enter unsupported trenches. Make sure you have safe access. Don't work below crane loads or other dangerous operations.

7. Report defects and near misses

If you notice a problem, don't ignore it; report it to your supervisor immediately. Action cannot be taken quickly if management are not aware of the problem, and the sooner problems are resolved the less chance for an accident to occur.

8. Never tamper with equipment

Never remove guard rails or scaffold ties. Do not remove guards. Do not attempt to fix defective equipment unless you are competent to do so. Do not ever tamper with equipment without authorisation.

9. Use 110v equipment

110v equipment only, must be suitable for use on site. 240v equipment strictly prohibited without prior authorisation from management and will only be used if no 110v alternative available and additional safety precautions taken.

10. If in doubt – Ask

It is better to be safe than sorry. Mistakes on construction sites can cost lives - don't let it be yours. If you need help or further information speak to your supervisor.

Construction Site Staff Training

- 5.1.3 The Principal Contractor will be required to ensure that all personnel engaged on site and in activities that may have an impact on the environment are competent to carry out their duties or, where necessary arrange for suitable training to be undertaken, before commencement of the associated construction activity.
- 5.1.4 The Principal Contractor will also be responsible for ensuring that any subcontractors are competent to undertake the relevant work, including with regards to environmental training. Health, Safety and Environmental requirements will be made clear in the procurement process and the Principal Contractor will be responsible for quality assurance, corrective action and disciplinary procedures for non-compliance. Sub-contractors will be required to attend environmental awareness training as part of the site induction and any relevant Toolbox Talks.

- 5.1.5 The Principal Contractor will raise awareness of site rules with a construction site rules toolbox talk, as part of the induction process, as a short awareness talk, or to display on site.
- 5.1.6 Awareness and appreciation for the contents and purpose of the CMP will be a priority during the training and induction process. All staff requiring site induction will undergo environmental awareness training relevant to the project as part of the induction. A training plan that identifies the training requirements for all personnel allocated with environmental responsibilities will be produced.
- 5.1.7 The Principal Contractor will hold informal 'Toolbox Talks' as necessary in line with key risk activities to promote safe working and environmental responsibility.

5.2 Site Hoardings

5.2.1 The Site boundary will be secured by hoardings for security and public safety. These hoardings will be an appropriate height (a minimum of 2.4m) and will comply with BS 5975:2019 (Ref. 5) for construction of temporary works. Details are to be specified by the Principal Contractor and agreed with the LBC prior to works starting on-site.

5.3 General Public

- 5.3.1 Throughout the construction programme the Site will remain closed to the general public. Site access and the safety of the general public at the entrances / exits will be controlled and managed by trained personnel.
- 5.3.2 Measures to safeguard visitors to the Site and to segregate them from ongoing construction operations will be implemented. Separate pedestrian and vehicle/ plant accesses and routes will be established and maintained. Safe and unobstructed routes to operational buildings outside of the Site will be provided. Clear visitor routes will be defined through the use of appropriate signage.

5.4 Lighting

- 5.4.1 Temporary lighting will be provided within the Site and the Site compound, additional lighting will be provided as the construction progresses. In determining construction lighting requirements, appropriate measures will be adopted by the contractors to minimise nuisance or harmful impacts arising from obtrusive light on sensitive receptors.
- 5.4.2 It is envisaged that low wattage directional lighting will be used on the Site during the construction works to avoid lighting disturbance of neighbouring land uses, in line with the Institution of Lighting Engineers 'Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Light' (Ref. 6). Lighting provided will be of the minimum luminosity required for safety and security purposes.
- 5.4.3 Where practicable, motion sensor lighting and low energy consumption fittings will be installed to reduce usage and energy consumption.

5.5 Site Working Hours

- 5.5.1 The Camden Minimum Requirements (Ref. 2)states that the following working hours should be adhered to (and set out in question 9 of the LBC Construction/ Demolition Management Plan Proforma (Ref. 1). These hours will be adhered to for the Proposed Development, unless otherwise agreed with LBC:
 - 0800 1800 hrs (Monday to Friday)
 - 0900 1300 hrs (Saturday)
 - No Sunday, Bank or Public Holiday working unless by prior approval for specific works
- 5.5.2 Should construction work outside of these hours be required, the Principal Contractor will make an application to the LBC for prior consent for works through Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974 (Ref. 7), i.e. for tower crane installation.

5.6 Additional Hours of Working

- 5.6.1 Certain construction activities may require extended working hours for reasons of engineering practicability, weather and safety such as major concrete pours and piling, surveys, lifting/fitting of infrastructure and abnormal deliveries.
- 5.6.2 The nature and timing of these works and the associated extended working hours will be agreed with the LBC through the Section 61 process and notified to relevant stakeholders. The Principal Contractor will be required to liaise and consult with the LBC prior to applying for Section 61 consent.
- 5.6.3 In the case of work required in an emergency, or which if not completed would be unsafe or harmful to workers, the public or local environment, the LBC will be informed as soon as reasonably practicable of the reasons and likely duration. Examples may include concrete pouring taking longer than anticipated due to unfavourable conditions or equipment failure.

5.7 **Emergency Procedures**

- 5.7.1 The Principal Contractor will prepare and implement appropriate measures to control the risk of pollution due to construction activities, materials and extreme weather events and document these in an incident response plan. In the event of any incident, including an environmental incident, the project incident response plan procedures must be followed.
- 5.7.2 In line with the emergency procedures, regular monitoring of weather forecasts will be undertaken to plan around any extreme weather events.
- 5.7.3 The Principal Contractor will prepare and maintain a list of emergency contacts with contact details displayed prominently at the Site, including emergency phone numbers and the method of notifying LBC and other relevant services.

- 5.7.4 Details of the incident response plan will be provided within the procedures set out in the Site project files.
- 5.7.5 Where an environmental incident or near miss has occurred, the Principal Contractor will initiate a root cause review within 24 hours of the incident occurring. The review should include all relevant personnel and the Client where appropriate. The review and recommendations will be reported to the Client and Project Manager within an appropriate timeframe and recorded on the Site project files.

5.8 Good Housekeeping

- 5.8.1 The Principal Contractor will follow a "good housekeeping" policy at all times. This will include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following requirements:
 - General maintenance and cleanliness of the Site boundary, welfare facilities and storage areas.
 - Provision of adequate welfare facilities for site personnel.
 - Appropriate waste management provision and regular collections, and no burying of waste on site.
 - Open fires will be prohibited at all times.
 - Maintenance of wheel washing facilities or other contaminant measures.
 - No discharge of site runoff or water discharge without agreement of the appropriate authority.
 - Appropriate security and lighting.
 - The use of less intrusive noise alarms which meet the particular safety requirements of the site, such as broadband reversing warnings, or proximity sensors to reduce the requirement for traditional reversing alarms.
 - Provision of site layout map showing key areas such as material storage, spill kits, material and waste storage etc.
 - Maintenance of public rights of way, diversions and entry/ exit areas around the boundary of the Site for pedestrians and cyclists where practicable and to achieve inclusive access.

Rodent Control

- 5.8.2 The existing Site will be assessed for the presence of rodents and vermin prior to demolition. Should any rodent or vermin issues be present, an external contractor will be appointed to eradicate these.
- 5.8.3 Effective infestation prevention of pests or vermin will be installed including arrangements for regular disposal of food or other material attractive to pests. If infestation occurs during the construction of the Proposed Development the Principal Contractor will take appropriate action to eliminate the problem and prevent further occurrence.

6. Transport

6.1 Overview of transport management during the demolition and construction phases

- 6.1.1 This section provides a summary of the transport management measures to be implemented during the demolition and construction phases of the Proposed Development.
- 6.1.2 Where possible, details have been included to respond to questions 15 to 27 of the LBC Construction/ Demolition Management Plan Proforma (Ref. 1). However, where information is not yet known, this will be completed by the Principal Contractor once appointed.
- 6.1.3 Information to be confirmed by the Principal Contractor, once appointed, includes:
 - Name of Principal Contractor (question 15 in the LBC Construction/ Demolition Management Plan Proforma);
 - Proposal for checking compliance with CLOC Standard (question 16 in the LBC Construction/ Demolition Management Plan Proforma);
 - Confirmation of CLOCS Standards (question 17 in the LBC Construction/ Demolition Management Plan Proforma); and
 - Confirmation that the Principal Contractor has included the requirement to abide by the CLOCS Standard in their contracts to contractors and suppliers.

6.2 Site Traffic Routing

6.2.1 The Site is enclosed by St Pancras Way and Granary Street and is most readily accessed directly from St Pancras Way. The Site and its immediate highways context is illustrated on Figure 6-1.
Oriel Outline Construction Management Plan





- 6.2.2 The Site currently is located outside the Congestion Charge Zone/Ultra Low Emissions Zone (ULEZ). However, Transport for London (TfL) intends to extend the ULEZ zone to cover the whole of Camden from October 2021, requiring drivers of certain vehicles to pay a daily fee to drive to the Site.
- 6.2.3 The Site is currently accessed via the southbound carriageway of A5202 St Pancras Way which is connected to the Transport for London Road Network (TLRN) at its junction with Kentish Town Road and Camden Street/A400.
- 6.2.4 Figure 6-2 below provides an extract indicating the location of the Site and its immediate connections with the A400 and A5202 respectively.

Oriel Outline Construction Management Plan



Figure 6-2: Site and Surrounding Highway Network

- 6.2.5 Vehicles delivering goods and materials to the Site will be required to use an appropriate route. This route will be communicated to all visitors to the site needing to travel by vehicle, identifying all restrictions.
- 6.2.6 The advised routing will be informed by TfL's Freight Journey Planner (http://freightplanner.tfl.gov.uk). The website can be accessed by FORS accredited companies. This website will produce personalised routings for freight vehicles which considers the time and date of the journey as well as the size of the vehicle.
- 6.2.7 Use of designated routes will ensure that congestion levels are reduced on both local and major routes, air and noise pollution are reduced and that vehicles comply with the London Lorry Control Scheme.
- 6.2.8 It is envisaged that the A400 Kentish Town Road and the A5202 St Pancras Way will form the most suitable links on the strategic road network to accommodate construction HGV and light vehicles (illustrated on Figure 6-3). The A400 Kentish Town Road form's part of London's TLRN. The A400

route enters the London Borough of Islington and becomes Junction Road between Tufnell Park and Archway, before it meets the A1. It is proposed that construction vehicles will access the Site via a number of routes, and this will be further developed by the Principal Contractor upon appointment.

- 6.2.9 To reduce the impact of the number of heavy goods vehicles an indicative access and egress routes has been identified for traffic approaching from the northern section of the TLRN Kentish Town Road;
 - Vehicles travel along A400 Kentish Town Road;
 - Vehicles bear left onto Left into A520 St Pancras Way;
 - Vehicles travel 0.8 mile to 4 St Pancras Way and turn left into site access road;
 - Arrive at Site.

Figure 6-3: Indicative HGV Traffic Route



6.3 Control of Site Traffic, particularly at Peak Hours

6.3.1 Efforts to restrict construction vehicle movements to the hours of 9.30am to 4.30pm on weekdays and between 9.00am and 1.00pm on Saturdays will be adopted. Vehicles may be organised and permitted to arrive on site at 8.00am if they can be accommodated on site. When this is the case, drivers will wait with their engines switched off.

Delivery Booking and Scheduling

- 6.3.2 An online Delivery Management System (DMS) will be implemented and designed to co-ordinate the entire booking process, preventing any unbooked deliveries delaying major critical path deliveries.
- 6.3.3 Additionally, the system will ensure that bookings for deliveries/collections are scheduled; creating awareness and efficiency whilst also allowing the flow of materials onto a project. The software chosen will enable real-time reservation scheduling, easy delivery dispatch and instantaneous delivery management.
- 6.3.4 The Principal Contractor will be fully trained in the DMS, ensuring that the flow of materials and people from the supply chain to the Site is not delayed.
- 6.3.5 Furthermore, it is the intention to display on a large wide screen monitor within the site office the DMS; this will provide a visual schedule for all project deliveries to all operatives. In addition, the same screen will be used to display health and safety updates and project changes, creating an interactive notice board for the Proposed Development.

Details of Types of Vehicles

- 6.3.6 Details of the types of vehicles required to service the Site and the approximate number of deliveries per day will be developed by the Principal Contractor for the various phases of the project. However, the following list provides an indication of the types of vehicles that will need to gain access to the Site during the construction process. The vehicle types have been selected to ensure that they are of a size that can be accommodated on the highway network given the constraints of the Site access route, whilst minimising the potential number of traffic movements to and from the Site.
 - Skip Lorry 4 Wheel, 17 Tonne, G.V.W 11m, 2.55m width and 4m height;
 - Plant delivery Articulated low loader, 40 Tonne, G.V.W 16.5m, 2.55m width and 4.2m height;
 - Concrete Delivery Vehicle 8 Wheel, 30 Tonne, G.V.W 9.15m, height 3.75m, width 2.55m;
 - Rebar delivery Articulated flatbed, 40 Tonne, G.V.W 16.5m, 2.55m width and 4.2m height;
 - Volumetric Units Articulated flatbed, 40 Tonne, G.V.W 16.5m, 2.55m width and 4.2m height;
 - Building Deliveries 4 Wheel, 17 Tonne, G.V.W Panel body 11m, 2.55m width and 4m height;
 - Ballast and Loose Materials 8 Wheel, 30 Tonne, G.V.W, Tipper 9.15m height 3.75m width 2.55m;
 - General Building Materials 4 Wheel, 17 Tonne, G.V.W, HIAB Flat Bed 11m, 2.55m width and 4m height; and

- Bulk delivery articulated flatbed with HIAB, 40 Tonne, G.V.W 16.5m, 2.55m width and 4.2m height.
- 6.3.7 All construction vehicles over 3.5 Tonne will meet the following conditions:
 - Operators must be a member of TfL's Fleet Operator Recognition Scheme at the Silver level with a commitment to achieve Gold; and
 - All drivers will have undertaken cycle awareness training such as the Safe Urban Driver module through FORS or similar.
- 6.3.8 All vehicles associated with the construction works will have:
 - Side guards fitted;
 - A close proximity warning system fitted comprising of a front mounted, rear facing CCTV camera (or Fresnel Lens where this provides reliable alternative), a close proximity sensor, an in-cab warning device and an external warning device to make the road user in close proximity aware of the driver's planned manoeuvre;
 - A Class VI Mirror; and
 - Prominent signage on the rear of the vehicle to warn cyclists of the dangers of passing the vehicle on the inside.

Cumulative effects of construction traffic

6.3.9 The cumulative effects of construction traffic servicing multiple construction sites in the local area should be minimised where possible. Details of other developments in the local area on routes that may require deliveries to be coordinated between two or more sites will be investigated by the Principal Contractor and the steps and proposals will be submitted to LBC before works begin on site.

Holding Area

6.3.10 On appointment of the Principal Contractor a decision will be made on whether a nearby location will be required for holding construction vehicles for short periods of time, prior to arrival at the Site.

Consolidation Centre

6.3.11 It is anticipated that the number of potential vehicles arriving is unlikely to exceed the capacity within the Site boundary. The Principal Contractor will investigate the use of off-site fabrication and a consolidation facility to reduce the number of vehicle movements and labour on site. In addition, during the fit-out phase the Principal Contractor will investigate the use of a consolidation centre to more accurately control the flow of small deliveries. Consolidation methods will be considered to reduce and minimise the number of vehicles such as the London Borough's Consolidation Centre (LBCC), potentially providing financial, environmental and operational benefits through reducing cost, vehicle emissions and reducing time.

Emissions from engines

6.3.12 Emissions from engine idling will be minimised wherever possible. The Principal Contractor will inform and monitor the supply chain at regular intervals. All vehicles, other than concrete trucks, will switch off engines – no idling vehicles will be allowed and there will be a commitment to ensure vehicles meet lorry safety standards including CLOCS, FORS and Euro 6/VI emissions.

6.4 Site access and egress

- 6.4.1 During the early phases of the works, vehicles associated with demolition and basement construction will be entering and leaving the Site.
- 6.4.2 Vehicles entering and leaving the Site will be carefully managed, using gates that are clearly marked and free from obstacles. Traffic marshals will ensure the safe passage of all traffic on the public highway, in particular pedestrians and cyclists, when vehicles are entering and leaving site, particularly if reversing.
- 6.4.3 Traffic marshals, or site staff acting as traffic marshals, will hold the relevant qualifications required for directing large vehicles when reversing. Marshals should be equipped with 'STOP WORKS' signs (not STOP/GO signs) if control of traffic on the public highway is required. Marshals will have radio contact with one another where necessary. Full details of the proposed site access and egress points will be developed by the Principal Contractor and diagrams generated to clearly show access and egress points over the various phases of the works.
- 6.4.4 Routing will be planned to allow vehicles accessing the Site by the Principal Contractor. All vehicle movements into the Site will be fully marshalled and controlled by qualified banksmen. Exact numbers and locations of traffic marshals will be provided by the Principal Contractor.

6.5 Swept Paths

6.5.1 Swept path analyses for vehicles accessing/egressing the Site and the proposed route will be developed and submitted by the Principal Contractor before works begin on site, in accordance with question 19 of the LBC Construction/ Demolition Management Plan Proforma (Ref. 1).

6.6 Wheel Wash Management

- 6.6.1 Due to the layout within the Proposed Development, the Site will have designated loading areas. These areas will also serve as wheel wash areas for vehicles leaving the confines of the Site during the demolition and substructure works. Similarly, road sweepers will be dedicated to keeping all the access routes including public and internal roads and footpaths clean.
- 6.6.2 All ground or surface water run-off will be strictly controlled in accordance with environmental legislation and best practice to prevent pollution of drains and watercourses will be adopted. The location of the wheel wash station(s) will be provided by the Principal Contractor.

- 6.6.3 It is recognised that the Site sits within the wider St Pancras Hospital campus and, as such, vehicle access and egress cannot be considered in isolation. To this end several potential routes and options were investigated to establish the optimum vehicle access for construction traffic serving the Site and the routing proposed does not adversely affect local bus, taxis or other amenities within the vicinity of the Site.
- 6.6.4 To minimise the impact of traffic movements, the following strategies will be implemented;
 - No parking is to be permitted on either of the access roads.
 - All operatives shall use the established site pedestrian routes.
 - All people entering and leaving the Site will be required to log in and out.
 - Exclusion zones will be erected with controlled access / egress to the demolition zone.
 - Vehicles will not be allowed to queue on the highway. At no time will vehicles exceed 5mph within the Site.
 - A road sweeper and / or a hose will be available at the entrance of the Site to prevent the spread of and mud \ debris onto surrounding roads.
 - Lorry routing will be determined so that the extent of cycle / lorry conflicts and cycle accident blackspots are avoided where possible.
 - In addition to the requirements of FORS and CLOCS, road hauliers engaged on the project will be required to provide details of specific training with respect to cycle awareness and vehicle anti-idling measures.
 - All drivers will be issued with a copy of the traffic route plan prior to coming to Site and will receive a Traffic Management Induction prior to attending Site.
 - The communication between vehicles accessing Site and the Site team will be maintained to minimise congestion around the Site and avoid any possible stacking. The Principal Contractor will ensure communication is maintained between drivers and the Site team so that the arrival of vehicles can be suitably planned.

6.7 Loading and Unloading, and Construction Vehicle Types

- 6.7.1 The Principal Contractor will ensure that any collection and delivery will take place away from main roads. If holding areas for vehicles accessing the Site are required, the Principal Contractor will ensure these take place in locations which do not impact the highway network. A designated area within the Site may be identified as an on-site turning space, queuing facilities and serve as a holding area for vehicles. This will be set out in detail by the Principal Contractor upon appointment.
- 6.7.2 It is anticipated that all parking and loading activity directly associated with the Site will be carried out within the curtilage of the site hoarding. This will be reviewed by the Principal Contractor on appointment.

- 6.7.3 The Principal Contractor will provide a clear policy to all staff for the loading and unloading of any materials on-site. The Site managers will also ensure that they request an estimate of the time required to load or unload any materials on-site to ensure that there is no conflict of any space within the site. This management of best practice procedures will ensure that no vehicles or staff is required to wait to carry out tasks. The Site managers will also ensure they inform any vehicles arriving on-site that it is unacceptable to arrive before they are scheduled to do so. This will ensure that vehicles do not wait in hazardous locations or create congestion.
- 6.7.4 The loading and unloading of any equipment, materials and scaffolding will be undertaken with due care to keep noise levels to a minimum. This will be overseen by an appropriate member of staff employed by the Principal Contractor.
- 6.7.5 The Principal Contractor will work with the LBC highway authority to ensure that construction working hours do not result in any conflicts on the local highway network. The Principal Contractor will make every effort to ensure that only a limited number of vehicles access the site during peak periods, such as weekdays, before 9.30am and after 4.30pm (except for necessary site traffic as agreed with LBC). The majority of deliveries will be complete by school finishing time and the contractor will seek to work within the guidelines.

6.8 On site Arrangements

- 6.8.1 The movement of vehicles during the various construction phases will include the following key activities:
 - **Demolition** Lorry movements will be split between plant deliveries, site set up and demolition material away vehicles.
 - Groundworks Construction vehicle movements will include delivering timber, reinforcement, concrete, drainage and muck away. Vehicular movements are expected to have similar arrangements as per the piling works described below, i.e. they will access the Site.
 - Piling Lorry movements will be split between concrete deliveries, rebar deliveries and muck away of spoil. Access will be planned to allow vehicles to enter/exit from the site. This will enable piling to be undertaken and protection measures put into place will be erected in order to aid construction and protect the public. Jet wash facilities will be employed during all of these stages of the construction to guard against mud and other substances from the lorry wheels, chassis and bodywork, to prevent any fouling of the public highway.
 - Frame Vehicles will utilise the construction site entrance and loading bay for offloading.
 - Fit Out Construction vehicles will enter the area in front of the Site, which will be separated from general traffic by hoarding or temporary barriers. The materials will be offloaded from these vehicles using a crane and could be stored either on the Site or on the footway (temporarily closed). In order to manage this activity and to ensure the safety of other road users, enhanced mitigation will be

implemented using the banksmen to ensure the movement of the construction vehicles entering and exiting the Site loading bay.

 Cladding – Vehicular movements are expected to have similar arrangements as per the fit-out construction deliveries described above.

6.9 Vehicle loading and unloading Traffic Marshals

6.9.1 Vehicle loading and unloading will be planned by the Principal Contractor. All vehicle movements, loading and unloading will be fully marshalled and controlled by qualified banksmen. Exact numbers and locations of traffic marshals will be provided by the Principal Contractor.

6.10 Site set-up

6.10.1 A detailed scaled plan showing the local highway network layout in the vicinity of the Site will be prepared by the Principal Contractor. This will include details of on-street parking bay locations, cycle lanes, footway extents, relevant street furniture, and proposed site access locations.

6.11 Parking bay suspensions and temporary traffic orders

- 6.11.1 Parking bay suspensions will only be requested where absolutely necessary and a Temporary Traffic Order (TTO) will be applied for.
- 6.11.2 Details of proposed parking bay suspensions and/or TTOs which would be required to facilitate the construction will include details of the expected duration in months/weeks and will be provided by the Principal Contractor in due course.

6.12 Occupation of the public highway

6.12.1 Details of using the public highway for storage, site accommodation or welfare facilities will be provided by the Principal Contractor, where required.

6.13 Motor vehicle and/or cyclist diversions

6.13.1 Details of any diversion, disruption or other anticipated use of the public highway during the construction period will be provided by the Principal Contractor. The Principal Contractor will provide a drawing to show the locations of diversions and associated signage.

6.14 Scaffolding, hoarding, and associated pedestrian diversions

- 6.14.1 Pedestrians' safety will be a priority and all diversions will be clearly sign posted and maintained. Vulnerable footway users should will be carefully considered. These include wheelchair users, the elderly, those with walking difficulties, young children, those with prams, the blind and partially sighted. Appropriate ramps will be used if it is unavoidable for cables, hoses, etc. to be run across the footway for short periods of time.
- 6.14.2 Any work above ground floor level may require a covered walkway adjacent to the Site. A licence will be applied for to allow scaffolding and gantries to

be erected. The adjoining public highway will be kept clean and free from obstructions, and hoarding will not restrict access to adjoining properties, including fire escape routes. Lighting as well as signage will be used on temporary structures/skips/hoardings etc. if outside the Site and a secure hoarding will installed at the Site boundary with lockable access.

6.14.3 The Principal Contractor will provide details once appointed of all scaffolding, hoarding and pedestrian diversions, including any other temporary structures which would overhang/oversail the public highway (e.g. scaffolding, gantries, cranes etc.).

6.15 Services

- 6.15.1 Changes to the existing utility services will be carried out throughout the various phases of the project, i.e. disconnection of redundant utilities and connections to public utilities and/or statutory undertakers' plant. The Proposed Development will require new utility services and furthermore, will affect the existing supplies to some of the retained neighbouring buildings. A strategy and programme for coordinating the connection of services will be produced and contact with the utility services / utility companies will have to be made.(e.g. UKPN, Thames Water, National Grid, EDF Energy, BT etc.).
- 6.15.2 Proposals about how the utility companies can coordinate their works, and perhaps share the same excavations and traffic management proposals, will be discussed with the utility companies, and the outcome of the discussions will be provided to LBC.

7. Environment

7.1 Environmental Management Overview

- 7.1.1 This section provides a summary of the environmental management measures to be implemented during the demolition and construction phases of the Proposed Development.
- 7.1.2 Where possible, detail has been included to respond to questions 28 to 42 of the LBC Construction/ Demolition Management Plan Proforma (Ref. 1). However, where information is not yet available, this will be provided by the Principal Contractor once appointed.
- 7.1.3 The Principal Contractor will be required to develop and implement an Environmental Management System (EMS) which is consistent with current legislation and best practice, such as ISO 14001 or equivalent environmental management standard.
- 7.1.4 The Principal Contractor will identify the environmental aspects of its activities and their associated environmental impacts as part of a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) for the Proposed Development, and will summarise the EMS.
- 7.1.5 Furthermore, the Principal Contractor will determine significant environmental aspects by undertaking an environmental risk assessment

(ERA) and will define appropriate mitigation, in line with the requirements set out within this Outline CMP.

- 7.1.6 The control or mitigation measures identified as a result of the ERA will be included within the construction method statements and communicated to those involved in the execution of the construction activities, and will include reference to relevant British Standards, codes, protocols and legislation. The effectiveness of the mitigation will be determined through monitoring.
- 7.1.7 For each work package associated with the demolition and construction phase, the contractors must issue a method statement detailing:
 - Their work procedure;
 - Pollution prevention measures;
 - How they will dispose of waste;
 - Any substances listed under Control Of Substances Hazardous to Health (COSHH) Regulations 2002 (Ref. 8) which are to be used; and
 - Environmental protection statements (including mitigation measures specified on the basis of the work-package specific ERA).
- 7.1.8 All method statements will be reviewed prior to their acceptance for use and communicated to the Site personnel prior to the start of works.
- 7.1.9 The sections below define a framework of mitigation measures for incorporation into the Construction Method Statements/ Risk Assessments and Method Statements (RAMS) during the demolition and construction phase. This approach is to ensure that the potential environmental impacts arising from the demolition and construction activities can be avoided or mitigated to an acceptable level of impact.

7.2 Noise

7.2.1 This section sets out the approach the Principal Contractor will take to minimise noise and vibration impacts during demolition and construction of the Proposed Development.

Noisy Operations

- 7.2.2 The Principal Contactor will:
 - Provide details and a list of all noisy operations and the construction method used
 - Be fully aware of the sensitivities to noise of those occupying the adjacent properties and will make all reasonable steps to minimise any noise disruption to adjacent occupiers.
 - Apply Best Practicable Means (BPM) (as defined by section 72 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974) and BS 5228 Noise and vibration control on construction and open sites (Ref. 9). to minimise construction noise and vibration on neighbouring sensitive receptors.

- 7.2.3 Where it is necessary to carry out noisy activities these will be carried out in accordance with LBC requirements and in consultation with any affected residents, businesses and local staff working within the wider St Pancras Hospital. Noisy activities will be identified well in advance and the timing of these agreed prior to commencement. The following principles will be implemented, further details of the noise mitigation measures are provided below:
 - Prior to commencement of works baseline monitoring levels will be established to agree acceptable noise levels with the LBC and sensitive receptors. Monitoring will be carried out in accordance with BS 5228.
 - Operatives working in noisy areas will be monitored to ensure they are wearing the necessary protective equipment and that they are not exceeding their permitted exposure periods.
 - Electrically operated plant will be used where practical. All plant used on the Site will be installed with silencers where practicable. No radios or other audio equipment will be permitted on site.
 - The daily time that noisy equipment is operated will be limited; however, it is acknowledged that sometimes a greater noise level may be acceptable if the duration of the construction activity, and therefore length of disruption, is reduced.

Noise Survey

- 7.2.4 Baseline noise surveys were undertaken at the Site from 27 August to 10 September 2020, comprising unattended long-term noise measurements that were supplemented with short-term attended noise monitoring during the daytime period.
- 7.2.5 Noise monitoring locations are described in Table 7-1 and illustrated in Appendix B. The results of this monitoring are provided in Appendix B.

Location ID	Details									
ML1	Adjacent to St Pancras Way next to the Post Room.									
ML2	On Granary Street adjacent to the North Wing building.									
ML3	Fire escape in the north section of space between the Kitchen Block and the Camley Centre.									
ML4	Southern boundary of the site out of 1st floor window of the Residence Building.									

Table 7-1. Noise Monitoring Locations

7.2.6 The Principal Contractor shall engage in early discussions with the LBC on the scope of the necessary noise and vibration monitoring and shall agree the details of the monitoring via the Section 61 consent process.

Noise & Vibration Predictions

- 7.2.7 A noise and vibration assessment relating to demolition and construction of the Proposed Development has been undertaken and is presented in the Noise and Vibration Assessment which is submitted with the planning application.
- 7.2.8 Once the Principal Contractor has been appointed and the list of equipment to be used has been confirmed, full details of noise and vibration predictions will be provided by the Principal Contractor.

Noise and Vibration Mitigation Measures

- 7.2.9 Where reasonably practicable, the following measures to minimise noise, vibration and levels will be adopted during the demolition and construction works to prevent noise and vibration disturbance from the activities on the Site, including the actions to be taken in the event that activities exceed the predicted levels:
 - Using modern, quiet and well-maintained equipment so that extraneous noise from mechanical vibration, creaking and squeaking is kept to a minimum. The Principal Contractor will ensure that all plant complies with the relevant statutory requirements
 - Machines in intermittent use will be shut down or throttled down to a minimum when not in use;
 - Compressors will be fitted with properly lined and sealed acoustic covers which will be kept closed whenever in use. Pneumatic percussive tools will be fitted with mufflers or silencers of the type recommended by the manufacturers;
 - Equipment which breaks concrete, brickwork or masonry by bending, bursting or "nibbling" will be used in preference to percussive tools. Where possible, the use of impact tools will be avoided where the site is close to occupied premises;
 - Rotary drills and bursters activated by hydraulic, chemical, or electrical power will be used for excavating hard or extrusive material;
 - Wherever possible, equipment powered by mains electricity will be used in preference to equipment powered by internal combustion engine or locally generated electricity Ensure that noisy plant is located as far from receptors as practicable and is screened using temporary barriers.
 - Screening and insulating the construction works from sensitive neighbours, in order to minimise the transfer of vibration and structure borne noise and undertaking regular monitoring to ensure the effectiveness of noise screens;
 - Limit the daily time that noisy equipment is operated; however, it is acknowledged that sometimes a greater noise level may be acceptable if the duration of the construction activity, and therefore length of disruption, is reduced;

- Careful material handling such as lowering rather than dropping items;
- Avoidance of unnecessary noise between operations, such as excessive revving of engines by effective site management;
- The use of radios on site, shouting, swearing, singing; sitting outside the Site is not to be permitted at any time.;
- As stated in Section 6 of this Outline CMP, the following traffic management measures will be applied which will reduce noise impacts:
 - Vehicles employed for any activity associated with the construction works will, where reasonably practicable, be fitted with effective exhaust silencers and shall be maintained in good working order;
 - Time slots will be adopted for deliveries to ensure that convoys of vehicles do not arrive simultaneously and avoid unnecessary idling on-Site;
 - Prevention of temporary parking on kerbsides in the vicinity of noise sensitive receptors near the Site; and
 - All construction vehicles will travel to and from the Site via a defined route.

Monitoring

- 7.2.10 The Principal Contractor shall provide details describing arrangements for monitoring of noise and vibration, including instrumentation to be used, locations of monitors and trigger levels where appropriate. Given the scale of the Proposed Development it can be defined as Major Works.
- 7.2.11 In accordance with the LBC's Minimum Requirements, a continuous noise monitoring regime shall be implemented to ensure that the levels of noise and where applicable vibration, are being maintained to a minimum.
- 7.2.12 The exact location of instrumentation will be provided by the Principal Contractor on appointment. Where there is evidence of unacceptable levels of noise and vibration from the building construction/demolition activities the site, the Principal contractor will make carry out their own inspection and assessment, and where necessary undertake ambient monitoring with the aim of identifying those process operations giving rise to the noise and vibration. Once the source of the emission is known, corrective action will be taken.
- 7.2.13 Effective preventative maintenance will be employed during all aspects of the demolition/construction works including all plant, vehicles, buildings and equipment concerned with the control of emissions to air.
- 7.2.14 The Principal Contractor shall only use suitably qualified staff to carry out noise and vibration monitoring.
- 7.2.15 The noise trigger levels will be agreed with LBC's Environmental Health Officer prior to works commencing in accordance with the process set out in LBC's Minimum Requirements.

7.2.16 As stated in LBC's Minimum Requirements, where the measured noise levels are more than 3 dB (A) above the predicted noise levels or in the event of a complaint of noise an investigation shall be carried out to ascertain the cause of the exceedance or the complaint and to check that BPM are being used to control the noise in accordance with the steps set out in the application for 'prior consent'. Noise levels shall be reduced further if it is reasonably practicable to do so.

Vibration

- 7.2.17 In the case of vibration, measured vibration levels shall be compared with the criteria in BS 5228: 2009 part 2 (Ref. 10). Lower limits will be agreed with the LBC if there is a risk that vibration levels may interfere with vibration sensitive equipment or other vibration sensitive objects.
- 7.2.18 Wherever possible to prevent unnecessary vibration arising from above/underground reinforced concrete superstructures which are to be demolished will be fitted with equipment with pulveriser/munching attachments.
- 7.2.19 To avoid noise and vibration transference via connections to adjacent buildings the Principal Contractor will separate the two by cutting structural breaks/ discontinuities with adjoining premises.
- 7.2.20 Where properties are close together the use of least vibration pilling techniques will be adopted. Breaking-up of concrete and the removal of floor slabs will be carried out using non-percussive techniques where practicable.
- 7.2.21 Where practicable ground bearing slabs will be levered from their position and broken up off-site. Where this is not practicable and where the structural transmission of noise and vibration generated by unavoidable percussive breaking into adjoining premises is likely, concrete slabs will first be cut around their perimeter to isolate them from the rest of the structure. Where the use of percussive breakers is necessary multiple breakers will be employed in order to minimise the time taken to break concrete and floor slabs.
- 7.2.22 Communication will be undertaken with neighbouring residents, businesses and staff within the wider St Pancras Hospital prior to concrete breaking so that works can be planned and measures implement to minimise the disturbance to neighbours as far as practicable.

Noise and Vibration Compliance with BS 5228:2009

- 7.2.23 In accordance with the LBC Construction/ Demolition Management Plan Proforma (Ref. 1) the Principal Contractor will produce evidence that staff have been trained to comply with BS 5228 -1:2009 'Code of practice for noise and vibration control on construction and open sites – Part 1: Noise' (Ref. 9).
- 7.2.24 Part 1 of the Code of practice for noise and vibration control on construction and open cites provides guidance on the methods that can be used to predict and measure noise from construction activities and how to assess the impact on those exposed to it. In particular Annex F sets out the methods

for estimating noise from construction sites which consider distance, ground effects, reflections from surfaces, and screening by obstacles.

7.3 Air Quality

Dust Nuisance Control Measures.

7.3.1 The Principal Contractor shall provide details on how dust nuisance arising from dusty activities, on site, will be prevented. Proposed site layouts will be planned to locate machinery and dust-causing activities away from sensitive receptors, where reasonably practicable. Appropriate methods, such as the erection of hoardings or other barriers along the Site boundary, will be used, where appropriate, to mitigate the spread of dust to any sensitive buildings or other environmental receptors (including the wider St Pancras Hospital). The site team will employ dust suppression measures when activities that risk generating large volumes of airborne dust are being carried out. This will normally take the form of damping down and dust screens. BPM will be strictly enforced to ensure work areas are kept clean and tidy at all times to prevent the migration of dust throughout the Site.

Public Highway Dirt and Dust Control Measures.

- 7.3.2 The Principal Contractor shall provide details describing how any significant amounts of dirt or dust that may be spread onto the public highway will be prevented and/or cleaned. In the initial stages, when demolition and ground works are being carried out, wheel washers will be used to wash down all vehicles that enter/leave the construction site.
- 7.3.3 All lorries will be fully sheeted to minimise the risk of any mud spreading onto the highway as well as considering spraying a fine spray to suppress dust on the following:
 - Structures and building during demolition;
 - Unpaved areas that are subject to traffic or wind;
 - Sand, spoil and aggregate stockpiles;
 - During loading/unloading of dust generating materials.
- 7.3.4 As well as a wheel wash, a hose and pressure washer will be provided at the main entrance to prevent any dirt/dust on vehicles when leaving the Site.

Air Quality Assessment and/or Dust Risk Assessment

7.3.5 A Dust Risk Assessment has been undertaken based on currently available information concerning construction phase activities, in accordance with the GLA's The Control of Dust and Emissions during Construction and Demolition Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) (Ref. 11). A summary of the Dust Risk Assessment is provided in Appendix C and full details of the Dust Risk Assessment are provided within the Air Quality Assessment submitted with the planning application.

- 7.3.6 The Dust Risk Assessment takes into account demolition, earthworks, construction and track-out activities and focused on human receptors since other sensitive receptors were scoped out due to their distance to the Site.
- 7.3.7 Overall, the Dust Risk Assessment conservatively identifies the Site as having a 'high risk' of causing dust impacts during demolition activities on the Site and mitigation measures consistent with a high-risk site are therefore proposed, as set out in the Air Quality Assessment.
- 7.3.8 The mitigation measures set out below are based on the 'highly recommended' and 'desirable' mitigation from the SPG. The final mitigation measures to be adopted will be selected by the appointed demolition and construction contractor. The dust controls confirmed by the Principal Contractor will be included in the CMP, which will be agreed with LBC prior to works commencing on Site.

GLA's 'highly recommended' measures

- 7.3.9 Based on the results of the Dust Risk Assessment, the mitigation measures listed below in paragraph 7.3.10 are recommended by the GLA's The Control of Dust and Emissions during Construction and Demolition SPG (Ref. 11).
- 7.3.10 It is recognised that not all of the recommended measures may be appropriate or feasible for all high-risk sites.
 - Site Management:
 - Develop and implement a stakeholder communications plan that includes community engagement before work commences on site.
 - Develop a Dust Management Plan.
 - Display the name and contact details of person(s) accountable for air quality pollutant emissions and dust issues on the site boundary.
 - Display the head or regional office contact information.
 - Record and respond to all dust and air quality pollutant emissions complaints.
 - Make a complaint log available to the local authority when asked.
 - Carry out regular site inspections to monitor compliance with air quality and dust control procedures, record inspection results, and make an inspection log available to the local authority when asked.
 - Increase the frequency of site inspections by those accountable for dust and air quality pollutant emissions issues when activities with a high potential to produce dust and emissions and dust are being carried out, and during prolonged dry or windy conditions.
 - Record any exceptional incidents that cause dust and air quality pollutant emissions, either on or off the site, and the action taken to resolve the situation is recorded in the log book.

- Hold regular liaison meetings with other high-risk construction sites within 500m of the site boundary, to ensure plans are co-ordinated and dust and particulate matter emissions are minimised.
- Preparing and Maintaining the Site:
 - Plan site layout: machinery and dust causing activities should be located away from receptors.
 - Erect solid screens or barriers around dust activities or the site boundary that are, at least, as high as any stockpiles on site.
 - Fully enclosure site or specific operations where there is a high potential for dust production and the site is active for an extensive period.
 - Avoid site runoff of water or mud.
 - Keep site fencing, hoarding, barriers and scaffolding clean using wet methods.
 - Remove materials from site as soon as possible.
 - Cover, seed or fence stockpiles to prevent wind whipping.
 - Avoid double handling of material wherever reasonably practicable.
 - Carry out regular dust soiling checks of buildings within 100m of site boundary and cleaning to be provided if necessary.
 - Agree monitoring locations with the Local Authority.
 - Where possible, commence baseline monitoring at least three months before phase begins.
 - Put in place real-time dust and air quality pollutant monitors across the site and ensure they are checked regularly.
- Operating Vehicle/Machinery and Sustainable Travel:
 - Ensure all on-road vehicles comply with the requirements of the London Low Emission Zone.
 - Ensure all non-road mobile machinery (NRMM) comply with the standards set within this guidance.
 - Ensure all vehicles switch off engines when stationary no idling vehicles.
 - Avoid the use of diesel- or petrol-powered generators and use mains electricity or battery powered equipment where possible.
 - Impose and signpost a maximum-speed-limit of 10mph on surfaced haul routes and work areas (if long haul routes are required these speeds may be increased with suitable additional control measures provided, subject to the approval of the nominated undertaker and with the agreement of the local authority, where appropriate).
 - Produce a Construction Logistics Plan to manage the sustainable delivery of goods and materials.
 - Implement a Travel Plan that supports and encourages sustainable travel (public transport, cycling, walking, and car-sharing).

- Loading of material into lorries within designated bay.
- Plant working on site to have exhausts positioned such that the risk of re-suspension of ground dust is minimised (exhausts should preferably point upwards), where reasonably practicable.
- Ensure all vehicles carrying loose or potentially dusty material to or from the site are fully sheeted.
- Use ultra-low sulphur fuels in plant and vehicles.
- Operations:
 - Only use cutting, grinding or sawing equipment fitted or in conjunction with suitable dust suppression techniques such as water sprays or local extraction, e.g. suitable local exhaust ventilation systems.
 - Ensure an adequate water supply on the site for effective dust/particulate matter mitigation (using recycled water where possible).
 - Use enclosed chutes, conveyors and covered skips.
 - Minimise drop heights from conveyors, loading shovels, hoppers and other loading or handling equipment and use fine water sprays on such equipment wherever appropriate.
 - Ensure equipment is readily available on site to clean any dry spillages and clean up spillages as soon as reasonably practicable after the event using wet cleaning methods.
- Waste Management:
 - Reuse and recycle waste to reduce dust from waste materials.
 - Avoid bonfires and burning of waste materials.
- Measures Specific to Demolition:
 - Soft strip inside buildings before demolition (retaining walls and windows in the rest of the building where possible, to provide a screen against dust)
 - Ensure water suppression is used during demolition operations.
 - Avoid explosive blasting, using appropriate manual or mechanical alternatives.
 - Bag and remove any biological debris or damp down such material before demolition.
- Measures Specific to Construction:
 - Avoid scabbling (roughening of concrete surfaces) if possible
 - Ensure sand and other aggregates are stored in bunded areas and are not allowed to dry out, unless this is required for a particular process, in which case ensure that appropriate additional control measures are in place

- Ensure bulk cement and other fine powder materials are delivered in enclosed tankers and stored in silos with suitable emission control systems to prevent escape of material and overfilling during delivery.
- Measures Specific to Trackout:
 - Regularly use a water-assisted dust sweeper on the access and local roads, as necessary, to remove any material tracked out of the site.
 - Avoid dry sweeping of large areas.
 - Ensure vehicles entering and leaving sites are securely covered to prevent escape of materials during transport.
 - Record all inspections of haul routes and any subsequent action in a site log book.
 - Install hard surfaced haul routes, which are regularly damped down with fixed or mobile sprinkler systems and regularly cleaned.
 - Inspect haul routes for integrity and instigate necessary repairs to the surface as soon as reasonably practicable
 - Implement a wheel washing system (with rumble grids to dislodge accumulated dust and mud prior to leaving the site where reasonably practicable).
 - Ensure there is an adequate area of hard surfaced road between the wheel wash facility and the site exit, wherever site size and layout permits.
 - Access gates to be located at least 10m from receptors where possible.
 - Apply dust suppressants to locations where a large volume of vehicles enter and exit the construction site.

GLA's 'desirable' Mitigation Measures

- 7.3.11 Based on the results of the dust risk assessment and the GLA's The Control of Dust and Emissions during Construction and Demolition SPG (Ref. 11), the mitigation measures listed below in paragraph 7.3.10 are 'desirable' to be implemented:
 - Preparing and Maintaining the Site:
 - Install green walls, screens or other green infrastructure to minimise the impact of dust and pollution.
 - Provide showers and ensure a change of shoes and clothes are required before going off-site to reduce transport of dust.
 - Measures Specific to Construction:
 - For smaller supplies of fine powder materials ensure bags are sealed after use and stored appropriately to prevent dust.

NRMM Machinery

7.3.12 The Principal Contractor shall register all relevant machinery on the NRMM register, including the Site name under which it has been registered. An inventory of all NRMM will be kept on site and all machinery will be regularly services and service logs will be kept on site for inspection. The Principal Contractor shall ensure that all NRMM machinery used on the Site meets the specific standards set out in EU Directive 97/68/EC for Nitrogen Oxide (NOx) and Particulate Matter (PM) emissions (Ref. 12). The Principal Contractor shall be required to enter the details of every vehicle on the NRMM website and copy the information to the Pollution Team at LBC.

Monitoring

- 7.3.13 Real-time dust (PM₁₀) monitoring with MCERTS 'Indicative' monitoring equipment will be required. These will be installed after it has been agreed with LBC whether the Site is a 'high impact' or a 'medium impact' site. In accordance with the LBC's Minimum Requirements, if the Site is a 'high impact' site, four real time dust monitors will be installed. If the site is a 'medium impact' site', two real time dust monitors will be installed.
- 7.3.14 Dust monitoring will be undertaken in accordance with the SPG and guidance published by the Institute of Air Quality Management (IAQM) (Ref. 14). The Principal Contractor will provide details describing arrangements for monitoring dust levels, including instrumentation, locations of monitors and trigger levels to the LBC for approval. Given the scale of the project it can be defined as Major Works.
- 7.3.15 Where possible dust monitoring will be in place and operational at least three months prior to the commencement of works on-site. Dust monitoring reports will be provided to the LBC detailing activities during each monitoring period, dust mitigation measures in place, monitoring data coverage, graphs of measured dust (PM₁₀) concentrations, any exceedances of the trigger levels and an explanation of the causes of any and all exceedances, in addition to the further mitigation measures which have been implemented to rectify these.
- 7.3.16 Effective preventative maintenance will be employed on all aspects of the construction/demolition works including all plant, vehicles, buildings and the equipment concerned with the control of emissions to air.
- 7.3.17 Management techniques which give effective control of emissions will include proper management, supervision and training for process operations; proper use of equipment; effective preventative maintenance on all plant and equipment concerned with the control of emissions to the air; and best practice will be adopted to ensure that spares and consumables are available at short notice in order to rectify breakdowns rapidly.
- 7.3.18 A commitment to the prevention of dust formation will be adopted by the Principal Contractor and implemented at the Site. Management and control of dust will be undertaken in accordance with the following hierarchy:
 - 1. Prevention;

- 2. Suppression; and
- 3. Containment.
- 7.3.19 All dusty operations will be identified, and best available techniques adopted to control dust emissions. When this is not practicable every effort will be made to control emissions at source. Examples include the correct storage of raw materials, organising the process in such a way that spillage is avoided, and maintaining high standards of internal and external housekeeping.
- 7.3.20 Consideration will be given to the siting of aggregate stockpiles, based upon such factors as the prevailing winds, the proximity of the Site boundary and proximity of neighbours.
- 7.3.21 In areas where there is vehicular movement, every effort will be taken to construct a consolidated surface which is kept in good repair.
- 7.3.22 The principles for preventing dust emissions will be adopted, such as containment of dusty processes and suppression of dust using water or proprietary suppressants. Suppression techniques will be properly designed, used and maintained, in order to be effective.

7.4 Ecology and Biodiversity

- 7.4.1 The Principal Contractor will adopt appropriate measures to protect biodiversity and limit indirect effects on habitat adjacent to the Site.
- 7.4.2 The following surveys will be undertaken:
 - Prior to the start of works on Site, an Invasive Non-Native Species survey will be undertaken to establish the extent within the Site of Virginia creeper, and species listed in the London Invasive Species Initiative (LISI) as species of concern due to the high risk of negative impact on the environment. Virginia creeper is listed on Schedule 9 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) (Ref. 15). Two LISI Initiative Priority category 3 species (buddleia and cherry laurel) and one Priority category 4 (false-acacia) were identified on the Site during the Phase 1 habitat survey which was completed to inform the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal report which is submitted with the planning application. An Invasive Species Management Plan will be produced and implemented during site clearance to deal with all four plant species. The Invasive Species Management Plan will follow the guidance from the GB Non-Native Species Secretariat, Environment Agency and the Property Care Association. The Invasive Species Management Plan will detail the method for removal of the plants and the biosecurity measures that will be implemented. Appropriate treatment of these species as specified in the Invasive Species Management Plan should be undertaken by an appropriately gualified specialist contractor.
 - A survey to check for the presence/absence of active bird nests will be undertaken by a suitably qualified ecologist if site clearance works are being undertaken between the months of March and September inclusive. If any active nests are found, the work will cease, the area

with the nests will be left in-situ and an appropriate buffer zone will be established. This area will be left intact until it has been confirmed by the ecologist that the young have fledged, and the nest is no longer in use.

- 7.4.3 Furthermore, the following best practice measures related to (but not limited to) will be implemented during the construction of the Proposed Development to avoid adverse impacts to St Pancras Gardens SINC which is located approximately 45m south of the Site and is separated from the Site by the wider St Pancras Hospital site:
 - Plant and machinery will be turned off when not in use;
 - Enclosure and sheeting of material stockpiles;
 - Use of sheltered locations for material storage;
 - The use of wheel washes to reduce the tracking of soil onto adjacent highways with prompt clearance as a remedial action;
 - Sheeting vehicles carrying spoil;
 - Dust suppression measures for any on-site crushers; and
 - Avoiding directional lighting of sensitive ecological receptors.
- 7.4.4 The 2019 Bat Surveys Report which is submitted with the planning application presents the findings of emergence and re-entry surveys for Potential Roost Features (PRF) identified on buildings within the Site. The 2019 Bat Surveys report provides the following recommendations to mitigate potential construction impacts on bats:
 - Prior to works commencing, the contractors should be made aware that the buildings have potential to support roosting bats via a toolbox talk; and
 - Works to the features with potential to be egress and access points for bats must be carried out under the supervision of a suitably qualified ecologist.
- 7.4.5 In the event that a bat or signs of bats are found during the development, works should cease immediately, and a suitably qualified ecologist should be contacted for advice. A licence from Natural England may be required before works can continue.

7.5 Arboriculture

- 7.5.1 The Principal Contractor will avoid the loss of trees wherever practicable and will employ a suitably qualified arboricultural consultant to oversee any works in relation to trees. Trees which are to be removed, pruned and protected in relation to the Proposed Development are identified within the Arboricultural Impact Assessment which is submitted with the planning application.
- 7.5.2 Retained trees will be protected in accordance with BS 5837: 'Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction' (Ref. 16). Any works to trees will be carried out by suitably trained or qualified personnel in accordance with BS 3998: Tree work Recommendations (Ref. 17). Should the

requirement for additional tree works be identified, this will be discussed with a suitably qualified arboriculturist and no works will be undertaken without prior consent of the LBC.

7.5.3 An Arboricultural Method Statement will be prepared prior to the start of works on Site. An outline method statement is appended to the Arboricultural Impact Assessment.

7.6 Archaeology

- 7.6.1 Mitigation measures to manage potential effects on the archaeology may include, if deemed appropriate in consultation with the Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service (GLAAS), a phased programme of archaeological monitoring of the site investigation, trial trenching and/or archaeological monitoring of intrusive works during construction. The scope of the archaeological monitoring and evaluation would be subject to approval by GLAAS.
- 7.6.2 During the course of construction, should artefacts of archaeological interest or expected interest be located these will immediately be reported to the Principal Contractor's Project Manager.
- 7.6.3 Should human remains be located during construction, either during archaeological works (if required) or during construction activity, the Client, the Principal Contractor and all subcontractors will comply with all relevant legislative requirements.
- 7.6.4 During the course of construction should artefacts be located that are deemed by their material content or context to be treasure, as defined by the Treasure Act 1996 (Ref. 18), then all necessary measures to comply with the requirements of the Act and any project-specific requirements will be implemented.

7.7 Built Heritage, Townscape and Visual Impacts

- 7.7.1 Hoardings and fencing are to be provided and maintained by the Principal Contractor. All worksites will be completely fenced and secured to prevent public access.
- 7.7.2 The Principal Contractor will instigate a programme of maintenance and regular inspection to ensure that all site hoardings and fencing remain secure and in good condition and keep the Site entrance and neighbouring roads clean and tidy.

7.8 Ground Conditions

- 7.8.1 The Principal Contractor will adopt appropriate measures to protect, assess, mitigate and remediate land where required, including (but not limited to):
 - Work will be carried out in accordance with Construction Design Management (CDM) Regulations 2015 (Ref. 19);
 - A competent/ licensed contractor will survey and remove asbestos containing materials (ACM) and other materials and structures contaminated with asbestos fibres.

- An Incident Response Plan will be drafted prior to the commencement of the works. The Incident Response Plan will outline key pollution mitigation measures including a Control of Substances Hazardous to Health (COSHH) / fuel inventory and key contacts to be notified in the event of a significant pollution incident, which may subsequently lead to the contamination of controlled waters. Tanks and dispensing pumps will be locked when not in use to prevent unauthorised access. Information regarding spill prevention and disposal of COSHH items will be provided as part of the Site induction and during regular toolbox talks and as the works progress. On-site provisions will be made to contain a serious spill or leak through the use of booms, bunding and absorbent material, such equipment will be located in key areas of the Site such as oil storage areas.
- Appropriate use of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) and implementation and adherence to Health & Safety Protocols, Plans and Procedures. Demolition and construction workers will remain vigilant of ground conditions at all times and will report to the Principal Contractor any suspected areas of potential contamination.
- Potentially contaminated made ground will be removed from excavations. Advice should be sought from an environmental specialist should materials suspected of being contaminated be uncovered.
- Oils and hydrocarbons will be stored in designated locations with specific measures to prevent leakage and release of their contents, include the siting of storage areas away from surface water drains, on an impermeable base with an impermeable bund that has no outflow and is of adequate capacity to contain 110% of the contents.
- Vehicles should be well maintained to prevent accidental pollution from leaks. Static machinery and plant should include drip trays beneath oil tanks/engines/gearboxes/hydraulics, which will be checked and emptied regularly.
- Pile arisings, concrete, pastes and/or grouts will be appropriately handled and disposed of during the laying of foundations.
- During excavation, the contractor/s will employ dust suppression measures when necessary to prevent the potential mobilisation of contaminated dust particles and their migration off site.
- Stockpiles and material handling areas will be kept as clean as practicable to avoid nuisance from dust. Dusty materials will be dampened down using water sprays in dry weather or covered.
- The length of time materials are stockpiled on-site before being removed for re-use, recycling or disposal is to be kept to a minimum and stockpiles are to be covered prior to disposal.

7.8.2 As set out in the Phase 1 Geotechnical and Geoenvironmental Desk Study Report which is submitted with the planning application, a Phase 2 intrusive ground investigation will be required prior to commencement of demolition and construction works, secured through an appropriately worded planning condition. The investigation will evaluate the quality of the soils and groundwater on the Site to specify foundation design requirements and management measures for any contamination found, if required, which will be implemented by the Principal Contractor.

Asbestos Survey

- 7.8.3 C&I NHS Trust have undertaken asbestos surveys on the Site (Ref. 20), and these surveys were used to inform preparation of the Phase 1 Geotechnical and Geoenvironmental Desk Study Report which is submitted with the planning application.
- 7.8.4 Where identified, ACM will be removed by a suitability licensed asbestos removal contractor and managed in accordance with the relevant statutory controls governing asbestos disposal. Any known ACM within the existing buildings will be removed in advance of the commencement of the demolition works in accordance with the Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012 (Ref. 21) and disposed of in accordance with the Hazardous Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2005 as amended (Ref. 22).

Unexploded Ordnance

- 7.8.5 The Phase 1 Geotechnical and Geoenvironmental Desk Study Report, which is submitted with the planning application, summarises the findings of a specialist unexploded ordnance (UXO) report prepared by SafeLane Global (Ref. 23) which was commissioned to further evaluate the risk and identify mitigation measures required for any future intrusive site works or development. The UXO report indicates that the risk of UXO being present on the Site is Medium, and recommends the following mitigation measures:
 - Site specific explosive ordnance safety and awareness briefings to be provided to all personnel conducting intrusive works;
 - Provision of unexploded ordnance Site safety instructions;
 - Explosive ordnance disposal engineer to be present on Site to support shallow intrusive works;
 - Handheld intrusive magnetometer survey to be undertaken of all borehole locations down to the maximum bomb penetration depth; and
 - Intrusive magnetometer survey to be undertaken of all pile locations down to the maximum bomb penetration depth.

7.9 Water Quality and Water Resources

7.9.1 The Principal Contractor will be required to manage site activities and working methods to protect the quality of surface water and groundwater resources. Precautions will also be taken to prevent damage to services and to avoid pollution during ground penetration, excavation and service

diversions. Monitoring systems and emergency procedures (in the event of any pollution incidents) will be employed during the construction works. BPM will be used (e.g. through the use of silt traps and the re-use of water in wheel washers) where appropriate.

- 7.9.2 Measures to be employed, as appropriate, include the following:
 - Sediment in run off:
 - The use of water-assisted dust sweepers on the access and local roads will be used to supress dust and remove any material tracked out of the Site as necessary;
 - Site access points will be regularly cleaned to prevent build-up of dust and mud;
 - Earth movement will be controlled to reduce the risk of construction silt combining with the Site surface water runoff;
 - Properly contained wheel wash facilities will be used where required, to isolate sediment rich runoff;
 - Leaks and spillages:
 - An Incident Response Plan will be produced, which all Site staff will have read and understood. On-site provisions will be made to contain a serious spill or leak through the use of booms, bunding and absorbent material;
 - Any spillages and leakages will be immediately contained in line with the Incident Response Plan;
 - Oil drums and containers or other hazardous substances stored on the Site will be controlled in accordance with the Control of Substances Hazardous to Health (COSHH) Regulations 2002;
 - Wherever possible, plant and machinery will be kept away from the drainage system and will have drip trays beneath oil tanks/engines/gearboxes/hydraulics which will be checked and emptied regularly;
 - The majority of concrete used will be pre-mixed and delivered from an off-site source. Any mixing and handling of wet concrete on-site will be undertaken in designated impermeable areas, away from any drainage channels or surface water;
 - Groundwater Flow and Quality:
 - In the event that ground contamination is discovered, work will stop immediately, and measures will be taken to prevent disturbance and mobilisation of contaminants, until the contamination has been treated in-situ or removed for off-site disposal or treatment;
 - If contaminated soils are encountered at the position where piling is due to be undertaken, then these materials should be removed prior to piling in order to prevent the dragging of contaminated soils with the piles to depth;

- Contaminated soil requiring disposal will be excavated and kept separate from other soil and waste materials in protected temporary stockpiles prior to disposal;
- Water arising from excavations will be disposed of to the local sewer network (subject to prior agreement with Thames Water) if uncontaminated and following the removal of silt via silt buster or other settlement technology;
- Damp-proof membranes will be incorporated into the construction. These membranes will prevent the ingress of groundwater and reduce the risk of contaminants from reaching underground strata or groundwater. The watertight basement will therefore prevent any interior leaks or spillages from freely percolating into the shallow groundwater.
- Flood risk during construction:
 - The Principal Contractor as far as reasonably practicable, will ensure that flood risk is managed safely throughout the construction period and consider flooding when planning the site layout and storing materials.
- Minimising water use during construction:
 - Selection and specification of equipment to reduce amount of water required;
 - Implementation of staff-based initiatives such as turning off taps, plant and equipment when not in use, both on-Site and within Site offices;
 - Use of recycling water systems such as wheel washes and Site toilets hand wash;
 - Use of rainwater harvesting system for use in equipment and vehicle washing.
- Minimising wastewater generation during construction:
 - The installation of water efficient fixtures and fittings would further reduce the volume of foul water generated on Site.
- Disturbance of existing drainage systems and water supply network:
 - All existing utilities will be identified and marked as far as practicable prior to works commencing;
 - Signs will be used to warn of the presence of any drainage systems;
 - Any damage to existing drainage networks will be immediately repaired.

7.10 Waste and Materials Management

7.10.1 As set out in the Circular Economy Statement which is submitted with the planning application, the use of Design for Manufacture and Assembly (DfMA) is being fully explored as part of the design to reduce waste in the production and construction of the building. Modular elements will be

prioritised such as the central core which could be pre-fabricated and assembled on Site on a floor-by-floor basis.

- 7.10.2 The Principal Contractor will be required to implement the waste hierarchy (i.e. prevention, preparing for re-use, recycling, other recovery and disposal as set out in the Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2011 (as amended) to ensure that material resources are used to their maximum efficiency.
- 7.10.3 The Principal Contractor will comply with relevant legislation and best practice guidance governing the identification, handling, storage, transfer, treatment and disposal of all waste. Prior to the removal of waste from Site, the Principal Contractor will put in place all relevant authorisations and develop a register for keeping waste records including information that relates to the transfer of waste (waste carriers); any off-site waste management facilities (permitted or exempt sites) to which waste is taken, and any requirements for hazardous waste premises notification. The Principal Contractor will also ensure that an environmental permit or registered exemption is in place prior to any off-site transfer, treatment or disposal of waste being undertaken.
- 7.10.4 The Principal Contractor will be responsible for ensuring that all duty of care documentation is in place, in line with the relevant statutory requirements, for any waste leaving the Site for waste transfer and that waste will be removed only by licensed carriers. Duty of care documentation will be retained by the Principal Contractor.
- 7.10.5 The Principal Contractor will be required to produce a suitable management plan in order to explore the option for the re-use of site-won materials to maximise off-site disposal of material where possible. The measures should also reference the consideration of specific design elements such as incorporating site-won material from demolition in construction. However there may not be much opportunity to reclaim components or materials from the existing buildings due to the presence of asbestos in many elements of the existing buildings.
- 7.10.6 The Principal Contractor will make provision for a waste storage area on the Site that will include containers for the collection and segregation of waste and will be clearly labelled. This is to facilitate re-use, recycling and recovery of waste. Containers will be covered with sheeting or lids. Plastic sheeting will be used where there is a need to store excavated materials and aggregates where these are not stored within a container.
- 7.10.7 Liquid wastes will be stored on hard-surfaced areas with secondary containment systems to prevent spillages. Waste will not be stored within 10m of any surface water drainage system or foul water drainage system.
- 7.10.8 The Principal Contractor shall engage in early discussions with the supply chain to minimise packaging and develop take back schemes. Consideration will be given to sourcing reusable material for the Site hoarding or that the wood used for the hoarding is of recycled materials.

8. Relationship to the Development Control Requirements

- 8.1.1 The CMP should be referred to when:
 - Planning works to minimise remedy or mitigate the effects on the environment;
 - Undertaking all works that may have an impact on the environment; and
 - Communicating with Stakeholders.
- 8.1.2 Once the CMP has been agreed with relevant stakeholders it will be adopted by the Principal Contractor and made available to all parties so that it can be used as a practical construction and communication management tool and reference source.

Documented Information

- 8.1.3 Details of the ongoing management of the CMP will be documented and kept on file.
- 8.1.4 The CMP will be saved in an online management system and as a hard copy, if appropriate, which will be available for view at the Site compound.
- 8.1.5 The CMP will be reviewed and updated by the contractor every 6 months and upon significant changes to the demolition and construction methods, whichever is sooner.
- 8.1.6 The CMP file will include:
 - A copy of the latest version of the CMP;
 - Details of the appointed roles;
 - Monitoring and auditing information;
 - Complaints register; and
 - Any other information relevant to demonstrating compliance with the requirements set out within the CMP.

9. References

Ref. 1. London Borough of Camden. Construction/Demolition Management Plan Proforma:

https://www.camden.gov.uk/documents/20142/1269042/CMP+Proforma+%28Construction+Management+Plan%29+updated+on+10.07.2020. docx/5ca4903e-cfdf-848f-b5aa-e7682e8890d1?t=1594384232750 [accessed August 2020]

- Ref. 2. London Borough of Camden. Camden's Minimum Requirements. https://www.camden.gov.uk/documents/20142/1269042/Camden+Minimum+ Requirements+11-02-2019.pdf/0465df06-0c40-474a-dd04-5039812bd3cd [accessed August 2020]
- Ref. 3. London Borough of Camden. 2008. Guide for Contractors Working in Camden
- Ref. 4. London Borough of Camden (2003) Kings Cross / St. Pancras Conservation Area Statement
- Ref. 5. British Standards Institution (2019) British Standard BS 5975:2019 Code of practice for temporary works procedures
- Ref. 6. Institution of Lighting Professionals (2020). Guidance Note 1 for the reduction of obtrusive light
- Ref. 7. Her Majesty's Stationery Office (1974) Control of Pollution Act 1974
- Ref. 8. Her Majesty's Stationery Office (2002) Control Of Substances Hazardous to Health (COSHH) Regulations 2002
- Ref. 9. British Standards Institution (2014) BS 5228:-1 2009+A1:2014 Code of practice for noise and vibration control on construction and open sites. Noise, BSI
- Ref. 10. British Standards Institution (BSI) (2014) BS 5228:-2 2009+A1:2014 Code of practice for noise and vibration control on construction and open sites. Noise, BSI
- Ref. 11. Greater London Authority (GLA) (2014); 'The Control of Dust and Emissions during Construction and Demolition – Supplementary Planning Guidance'. Available at: https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/gla_migrate_files_destination/D

https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/gla_migrate_files_destination/D ust%20and%20Emissions%20SPG%208%20July%202014.pdf

- Ref. 12. EU Directive 97/68/EC for Nitrogen Oxide (NOx) and Particulate Matter (PM) emissions
- Ref. 13. Her Majesty's Stationery Office (2015) Non-Road Mobile Regulations 2015
- Ref. 14. Institute of Air Quality Management (IAQM) (2014), Guidance on the assessment of dust from demolition and construction
- Ref. 15. Her Majesty's Stationery Office, Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended)
- Ref. 16. British Standards Institution (BSI) (2012), BS 5837:2012. Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction Recommendations. BSI
- Ref. 17. British Standards Institution (BSI) (2010), BS3998:2010. Tree work Recommendations. BSI
- Ref. 18. Her Majesty's Stationery Office. (1996) Treasure Act 1996
- Ref. 19. Her Majesty's Stationery Office (2015) Construction Design Management (CDM) Regulations 2015
 - Ref. 20. Tersus (2019 and 2020). Asbestos Re-Inspection Reports for the existing St Pancras Hospital Site
- Ref. 21. Her Majesty's Stationery Office (2012) Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012

- Ref. 22. Her Majesty's Stationery Office (2005). The Hazardous Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2005 as amended
- Ref. 23. Safelane Global (2019) Detailed Unexploded Ordnance Risk Assessment, Moorfields Eye Hospital

Appendix A Indicative Demolition and Construction Programme

Oriel Mon 12/10/20

ID 1	Task Name	Duration	Start	Finish
1	Oriel	894 days	Tue 01/02/22	Fri 04/07/25
2	Demolition Activity	33 wks	Tue 01/02/22	Mon 19/09/22
3	Start Line Wolfgra Establishment (Temp)	U days	Fri 04/02/22	Fri 04/02/22
4	Site Set Up - weilare Establishment (Temp)	∠ WKS	FII 04/02/22	Fri 01/04/22
5	Site Set Up - Permanent Weitare (once Building 5 Demolished)	1 WK	Mon 28/03/22	Fri 01/04/22
7	Hoardings to Site Boundary	3 WKS	Fri 18/02/22	Thu 02/02/22
8	Lisise with Hospital regarding ratained services	2 wks	Fri 18/02/22	Thu 03/03/22
9	Statutory Authorities to disconnected and retrieve service/equipment	2 wks	Mon 11/04/22	Fri 22/04/22
10	Ashestos Surveys	20 days	Fri 11/03/22	Thu 07/04/22
11	Aspestos Survey Building 5	1 wk	Fri 11/03/22	Thu 17/03/22
12	Asbestos Survey Buildings 1&2	2 wks	Fri 18/03/22	Thu 31/03/22
13	Asbestos Survey Buildings 3, 4 & 6	2 wks	Fri 18/03/22	Thu 31/03/22
14	Asbestos Survey Service Service Tunnels/Ducts	1 wk	Fri 01/04/22	Thu 07/04/22
15	Asbestos Removal Works (Provisional Allowances)	25 days	Fri 08/04/22	Thu 12/05/22
16	Asbestos Removal Building 5	1 wk	Fri 08/04/22	Thu 14/04/22
17	Asbestos Removal Buildings 1&2	3 wks	Fri 15/04/22	Thu 05/05/22
18	Asbestos Removal Buildings 3, 4 & 6	3 wks	Fri 15/04/22	Thu 05/05/22
19	Asbestos Removal Service Service Tunnels/Ducts	2 wks	Fri 29/04/22	Thu 12/05/22
20	Soft Strip Works	30 days	Fri 13/05/22	Thu 23/06/22
21	Building 5	1 wk	Fri 13/05/22	Thu 19/05/22
22	Buildings 1 & 2	4 wks	Fri 20/05/22	Thu 16/06/22
23	Buildings 3, 4 & 6	4 wks	Fri 27/05/22	Thu 23/06/22
24	Scaffold Installation	20 days	Fri 10/06/22	Thu 07/07/22
25	Building 1 - North & West Elevation	2 wks	Fri 10/06/22	Thu 23/06/22
26	Building 2 - North Elevation	2 wks	Fri 17/06/22	Thu 30/06/22
27	Building 3 & 6 - South & East Elevation	2 wks	Fri 24/06/22	Thu 07/07/22
28	Demolition Works (to ground level)	64 days	Mon 16/05/22	Thu 11/08/22
29	Building 5	1 wk	Mon 16/05/22	Fri 20/05/22
30	Building 1	2 wks	Fri 17/06/22	Thu 30/06/22
31	Building 2	4 wks	Fri 01/07/22	Thu 28/07/22
32	Building 4	2 wks	Fri 24/06/22	Thu 07/07/22
33	Building 3	4 wks	Fri 08/07/22	Thu 04/08/22
34	Building 6	3 wks	Fri 22/07/22	Thu 11/08/22
35	Slabs/Basements/Foundation Removal	55 days	Fri 29/07/22	Thu 13/10/22
36	Buildings 1, 2 & 5	3 wks	Fri 29/07/22	Thu 18/08/22
37	Buildings 3, 4 & 6	3 wks	Fri 05/08/22	Thu 25/08/22
38	Landscaping, Roads, Footpaths etc.	3 wks	Fri 19/08/22	Thu 08/09/22
39	Crushing of all suitable arisings & stockpile on site	7 wks	Fri 19/08/22	Thu 06/10/22
40	Demo Demobilise from Site	1 wk	Fri 07/10/22	Thu 13/10/22
41	Enabling Works	135 days	Fri 26/08/22	Thu 02/03/23
42	Site set up including remaining demolition.	8 wks	Fri 26/08/22	Thu 20/10/22
43	Prepare site for sheet piling	2 wks	Fri 09/09/22	Thu 22/09/22
44	Install Sheet piling approx. 50m run 10 m long	3 wks	Fri 23/09/22	Thu 13/10/22
45	Excavate to 20.000m level for pile mat approx. 15,000m3	10 wks	Fri 07/10/22	Thu 15/12/22



					Oriel Mon 12/10/20	AECOM					
ID	Task Name	Duration	Start	Finish	2022 2023 2024	2025					
40	laskil Dila asak	Queles	F≓ 10/11/00	Thu 00/10/00	21 Qtr 1, 2022 Qtr 2, 2022 Qtr 3, 2022 Qtr 4, 2022 Qtr 4, 2022 Qtr 4, 2022 Qtr 4, 2023 Qtr 2, 2023 Qtr 3, 2023 Qtr 4, 2023 Qtr 1, 2024 Qtr 2, 2024 Qtr 3, 2024 Qtr 3, 2024 Qtr 3, 2024 Qtr 3, 2024 Qtr 4, 2023 <th< td=""><td>2024 Qtr 1, 2025 Qtr 2, 2025 Qtr 3, 2025 Qtr 4, 203 / Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov</td></th<>	2024 Qtr 1, 2025 Qtr 2, 2025 Qtr 3, 2025 Qtr 4, 203 / Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov					
46		3 WKS	Fn 18/11/22	Thu 08/12/22	18/11						
47	Piling the Basement	4 wks	Fri 09/12/22	Thu 05/01/23	Piling the Basement Piling the Piling the Basement Piling the Piling the Basement Piling the						
48	Piling the Lower Ground	4 wks	Fri 30/12/22	Thu 26/01/23	Piling the Lower Ground						
49	Piling to remaining areas	4 wks	Fri 20/01/23	Thu 16/02/23	20/01 📥 Piling to remaining areas						
50	Construct Crane base 1	2 wks	Fri 06/01/23	Thu 19/01/23	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1						
51	Construct Crane base 2	2 wks	Fri 20/01/23	Thu 02/02/23	20/01 🎽 Construct Crane base 2						
52	Construct Crane base 3	2 wks	Fri 03/02/23	Thu 16/02/23	03/02 🎽 Construct Crane base 3						
53	Erect cranes	6 wks	Fri 20/01/23	Thu 02/03/23							
54	Basement and L.G.	200 days	Fri 17/02/23	Thu 23/11/23	17/02						
55	Reduce dig to 18.450 approx. 10,000M3 leaving berm to sheet piles	6 wks	Fri 17/02/23	Thu 30/03/23	Reduce dig to 18.450 approx. 10,000M3 leaving berm to sheet piles						
56	Reduce level dig to 17.150 for basement leaving berm to sheet piles approx. 1500m3	2 wks	Fri 24/03/23	Thu 06/04/23	24/03 🗾 Reduce level dig to 17.150 for basement leaving berm to sheet piles approx. 1500m3						
57	Install pile caps and ground beams up to 5m of sheet pile	5 wks	Fri 31/03/23	Thu 04/05/23	\$1/03 Install pile caps and ground beams up to 5m of sheet pile						
58	Drainage and services	3 wks	Fri 21/04/23	Thu 11/05/23	1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 +						
59	Basement slab	4 wks	Fri 05/05/23	Thu 01/06/23	05/05/						
60	Install props	2 wks	Fri 26/05/23	Thu 08/06/23	2¢/05 🚾 install props						
61	Remove berm	2 wks	Fri 02/06/23	Thu 15/06/23							
62	Complete pile caps and ground beams	2 wks	Fri 09/06/23	Thu 22/06/23	.09/06 Complete pile caps and ground beams						
63	Complete basement slab	2 wks	Fri 16/06/23	Thu 29/06/23							
64	Walls to basement up to 19.150	2 wks	Fri 23/06/23	Thu 06/07/23	22/06 Walls to basement up to 19.150						
65	Backfill behind walls	1 wk	Fri 30/06/23	Thu 06/07/23							
66	Install pile caps and ground beams to remaining areas	15 wks	Fri 16/06/23	Thu 28/09/23							
67	Drainage services and lower ground floor slabs	14 wks	Fri 07/07/23	Thu 12/10/23							
68	Liner walls	9 wks	Fri 08/09/23	Thu 09/11/23							
69	Internal walls and columns	9 wks	Fri 08/09/23	Thu 09/11/23							
70	Suspended Ground floor slab over basement	12 wks	Fri 01/09/23	Thu 23/11/23							
71	Ground Floor	40 days	Fri 29/09/23	Thu 23/11/23	01/09						
72	Pile caps and ground beams beyond basement	4 wks	Fri 29/09/23	Thu 26/10/23							
73	Drainage and services	3 wks	Fri 13/10/23	Thu 02/11/23	29/09 image by the second s						
74	Remaining ground floor slab	4 wks	Fri 27/10/23	Thu 23/11/23	13/10)∎∎the second services						
75	Superstructure to L12	150 days	Fri 27/10/23	Thu 23/05/24	Remaining ground floor slab						
76	Level 1	12 wks	Fri 27/10/23	Thu 18/01/24	i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i						
77	Level 2	11 wks	Fri 10/11/23	Thu 25/01/24							
78	Level 3	10 wks	Fri 24/11/23	Thu 01/02/24							
79	Level 4	10 wks	Fri 08/12/23	Thu 15/02/24							
80	Level 5	10 wks	Fri 22/12/23	Thu 29/02/24							
81	Level 6	10 wks	Fri 05/01/24	Thu 14/03/24							
82	Level 7	10 wks	Fri 19/01/24	Thu 28/03/24							
83	Level 8	7 wks	Fri 23/02/24	Thu 11/04/24							
84	Level 9	7 wks	Fri 01/03/24	Thu 18/04/24							
85	Level 10	6 wks	Fri 22/03/24	Thu 02/05/24	01/03}						
88	level 11	6 wks	Fri 29/03/24	Thu 09/05/24							
00 97	Level 12	6 wks	Fri 12/04/24	Thu 23/05/24	29/03						
0/		0 WNS	Eri 10/05/04	Thu 19/07/04							
88		IU WKS	Fri 10/05/24	Thu 10/01/24	Roof , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,						
89	Internal Basement Plant Hooms	OU WKS	Fri 02/02/24	Thu 10/01/25	¢2/02	Internal Basement Plant Rooms					
90	raçade Levei 2 to Hoot	26 WKS	Fri 23/02/24	inu 22/08/24	Façade Level 2	to Roof					
Upda	ate Date: NA				Page 2						



								Oriel Mon 12/10/20										A	EC	ЮM
ID Task Name	Duration	Start	Finish	21 Qtr Dec Jan	r 1, 2022 Feb Mar	Qtr 2, 2022 Apr May Ju	2022 Qtr 3, 2022 un Jul Aug Se	Qtr 4, 2022	Qtr 1, 2023 Jan Feb Mar	Qtr 2, 2023 Apr May Jun	2023 Qtr 3, 2023	Qtr 4, 2023	Qtr 1, 2024 ec Jan Feb Ma	Qtr 2, 2024 Apr May Ju	2024 Qtr 3, 2024 n Jul Aug S	Qtr 4, 2024	Qtr 1, 2025 Jan Feb Mar	Qtr 2, 2025 Apr May Ju	2025 Qtr 3, 202 1 Jul Aug	25 Qtr 4, 20 Sep Oct Nov
91 Stick System Level 0 to L1	10 wks	Fri 09/08/24	Thu 17/10/24												09/08	Stick Syster	n Level 0 to L1			
92 BMUs/Roof Plant	20 wks	Fri 28/06/24	Thu 14/11/24											28/06		BMUs/	Roof Plant			
93 Risers	30 wks	Fri 28/06/24	Thu 23/01/25		 									28/06			Risers			
94 Upper floor Plantrooms	30 wks	Fri 19/07/24	Thu 13/02/25											1	9/07		Upper	floor Plantroom	s I I	
95 Internal Floor Fit Out	52 wks	Fri 19/04/24	Thu 17/04/25										1 1	/04_				Internal Flo	oor Fit Out	
96 Lifts	50 wks	Fri 19/04/24	Thu 03/04/25										1	/04				Lifts		
97 Ground Floor Fit Out	26 wks	Fri 08/11/24	Thu 08/05/25													08/11		Groun	l Floor Fit Out	t ! !
98 Commissioning	30 wks	Fri 06/12/24	Thu 03/07/25													06/12			Commissi	ioning
99 Final Handover	1 wk	Fri 27/06/25	Thu 03/07/25															27/06	Final Hand	dover
100 Project Completion	1 day	Fri 04/07/25	Fri 04/07/25															04/0	7 Project Co	ompletion
Appendix B Noise Survey Results

Oriel Outline Construction Management Plan

Figure B-1 Noise Monitoring Locations



Table B.9-1. ML1 Noise Data

	Day		Evening		Night		
Date	L _{Aeq,12h} dB	L _{A90,15min} dB	L _{Aeq,4h} dB	L _{A90,15min} dB	L _{Aeq,8h} dB	L _{A90,15min} dB	L _{AFmax} dB
27-Aug-20	66	54	65	49	60	47	83
28-Aug-20	65	52	64	50	60	48	84
29-Aug-20	65	50	64	49	59	48	83
30-Aug-20	64	49	63	48	63	47	93
31-Aug-20	64	49	63	48	61	47	84
01-Sep-20	65	52	62	48	60	47	85
02-Sep-20	66	52	64	49	60	48	86
03-Sep-20	66	53	63	49	61	47	84
04-Sep-20	67	53	64	49	62	47	87
05-Sep-20	64	50	63	48	61	47	84
06-Sep-20	65	49	63	48	60	47	87
07-Sep-20	67	53	63	49	60	47	85
08-Sep-20	65	53	62	49	61	48	86
09-Sep-20	68	54	63	49	60	47	84

Table B.9-2. ML2 Noise Data

Date	Time	Duration	L _{Aeq,1h} dB	L _{A90,15min} dB	L _{AFmax} dB
3-Sep-20	12:30	60 mins	62	55	83

10-Sep-20	10:45	60 mins	63	55	85

Table B.9-3. ML3 Noise Data

	Day		Night			
Date	L _{Aeq,16h} dB	L _{A90,15min} dB	L _{Aeq,8h} dB	L _{A90,15min} dB	L _{AFmax} dB	
03-Sep-20	51	47	47	43	69	
04-Sep-20	53	47	47	44	68	
05-Sep-20	52	45	45	43	63	
06-Sep-20	51	44	45	42	63	
07-Sep-20	54	47	49	43	68	

Table B.9-4. ML4 Noise Data

	Day		Night		
Date	L _{Aeq,16h} dB	L _{A90,15min} dB	L _{Aeq,8h} dB	L _{A90,15min} dB	L _{AFmax} dB
03-Sep-20	55	47	48	42	74
04-Sep-20	56	47	49	43	71
05-Sep-20	56	45	47	44	65
06-Sep-20	58	43	47	42	67
07-Sep-20	56	47	50	42	81
08-Sep-20	56	47	48	45	72
09-Sep-20	57	47	48	42	71

Appendix C Dust Risk Assessment

Dust Risk Assessment

An Air Quality dust risk assessment has been undertaken based on currently available information concerning construction phase activities, in accordance with the GLA's The Control of Dust and Emissions during Construction and Demolition SPG (Ref. 11). There are no relevant ecological receptors (nationally designated ecological sites) within 50m of the Site boundary, 50m of the route used by construction traffic or within 500m of the Site entrance. Therefore, ecological receptors have been scoped out of the dust risk assessment.

It is estimated that the number of high-sensitivity receptors (i.e. residential properties, hospitals, schools and residential care homes) within 350m of the Site boundary will be approximately 300, therefore the dust risk assessment will proceed focussing on human receptors.

The sensitivity of the receptors identified within the vicinity of the Site has been assessed as shown in Table C-5 as per GLA's Control of Dust and Emissions during Construction and Demolition SPG (Ref. 11).

Area Affected	Sensitivity	Justification
Dust Soiling	High	There are between 10 to 100 high sensitivity receptors, i.e. residential properties, within 20m of the site boundary. So, in accordance with the GLAs assessment criteria the area is high sensitivity in terms of dust soiling/nuisance.
Human Health	Low	There are between 10 to 100 high sensitivity receptors, i.e. residential properties, within 20m of the site boundary, however, annual mean PM_{10} concentrations are below 24 μ g/m ³ . So, in accordance with the GLA's assessment criteria the area is low sensitivity in terms of health impacts.

Table C-5 Sensitivity of Receptors

Demolition

Construction of the Proposed Development will require the demolition of the six existing buildings within the Site. Demolition activities will be occurring over 20m above ground level; the potential dust emission magnitude for demolition activities is therefore considered to be large. The Proposed Development is therefore defined as high risk for dust soiling and low risk in terms of human health.

Earthworks

The Site area is approximately 13,300m² and is therefore classified within the > 10,000m² bracket defined by the IAQM within which the potential dust emissions magnitude associated with earthworks is estimated to be large. The Proposed Development is therefore defined as high risk for dust soiling and low risk in terms of human health.

Construction

The building volume of the Proposed Development is greater than 100,000m³ and consequently the magnitude of construction dust emissions magnitude is anticipated to be large. The Proposed Development is therefore defined as high risk for dust soiling and low risk in terms of human health.

Trackout

The number of construction-related heavy-duty vehicle (HDV) movements generated by the Proposed Development is estimated to be between 10-50 HDV movements per day at its peak, with maximum predicted HGV movements not anticipated to exceed 29 vehicles per day during any one phase. Considering the size of the Site, the potential dust emissions class for trackout is assumed to be medium. The Proposed Development is therefore defined as medium risk for dust soiling and low risk in terms of human health.

The dust risk assessment discussed above is summarised in Table C-6 and Table C-7.

Table C-6 Summary of Potential Dust Emission Magnitudes for Construction Phase Activities

Activity	Risk Magnitude	Justification
Demolition	Large	Demolition activities will be occurring over 20m above ground level.
Earthworks	Large	Earthworks site area is between > 10,000m ² and therefore estimated to be large risk magnitude.
Construction	Large	The construction volume is approximately >100,000 m ³ which would put construction at a risk magnitude of large.
Trackout	Medium	The peak number of construction-related heavy-duty vehicle (HDV) movements generated by the Proposed Development is predicted to be between 10-50 so the risk magnitude is considered to be medium.

Table C-7 Summary Dust Risk Table

Potential		Risk of Dust Impacts				
Impact	Demolition	Earthworks	Construction	Trackout		
Dust Soiling	High Risk	High Risk	High Risk	Medium Risk		
Human Health	Low Risk	Low Risk	Low Risk	Low Risk		

Overall, the dust risk assessment conservatively identifies the Site as having a 'high risk' of causing impacts during demolition activities on the Site and mitigation measures consistent with a high-risk site should therefore be implemented. The proposed mitigation measures are presented in Table C-4.

Table C-4 Proposed Construction Phase Dust Mitigation Measures

Mitigation Measure	Highly Recommended (H) / Desirable (D)
Site Management	
Develop and implement a stakeholder communications plan that includes community engagement before work commences on site.	Н
Develop a Dust Management Plan.	Н
Display the name and contact details of person(s) accountable for air quality pollutant emissions and dust issues on the site boundary.	Н
Display the head or regional office contact information.	Н
Record and respond to all dust and air quality pollutant emissions complaints.	н
Make a complaint log available to the local authority when asked.	Н
Carry out regular site inspections to monitor compliance with air quality and dust control procedures, record inspection results, and make an inspection log available to the local authority when asked.	Н
Increase the frequency of site inspections by those accountable for dust and air quality pollutant emissions issues when activities with a high potential to produce dust and emissions and dust are being carried out, and during prolonged dry or windy conditions.	Н
Record any exceptional incidents that cause dust and air quality pollutant emissions, either on or off the site, and the action taken to resolve the situation is recorded in the log book.	н
Hold regular liaison meetings with other high-risk construction sites within 500m of the site boundary, to ensure plans are co-ordinated and dust and particulate matter emissions are minimised.	Н
Preparing and Maintaining the Site	
Plan site layout: machinery and dust causing activities should be located away from receptors.	н
Erect solid screens or barriers around dust activities or the site boundary that are, at least, as high as any stockpiles on site.	Н
Fully enclosure site or specific operations where there is a high potential for dust production and the site is active for an extensive period.	Н
Install green walls, screens or other green infrastructure to minimise the impact of dust and pollution.	D
Avoid site runoff of water or mud.	Н
Keep site fencing, hoarding, barriers and scaffolding clean using wet methods.	Н
Remove materials from site as soon as possible.	Н
Cover, seed or fence stockpiles to prevent wind whipping.	Н
Avoid double handling of material wherever reasonably practicable.	Н
Carry out regular dust soiling checks of buildings within 100m of site boundary and cleaning to be provided if necessary.	н
Provide showers and ensure a change of shoes and clothes are required before going off-site to reduce transport of dust.	D
Agree monitoring locations with the Local Authority.	Н
Where possible, commence baseline monitoring at least three months before phase begins.	н

Put in place real-time dust and air quality pollutant monitors across the site and ensure they are checked regularly.

н

Mitigation Measure	Highly Recommended (H) / Desirable (D)
Operating Vehicle/Machinery and Sustainable Travel	
Ensure all on-road vehicles comply with the requirements of the London Low Emission Zone.	н
Ensure all non-road mobile machinery (NRMM) comply with the standards set within this guidance.	н
Ensure all vehicles switch off engines when stationary – no idling vehicles.	Н
Avoid the use of diesel- or petrol-powered generators and use mains electricity or battery powered equipment where possible.	н
Impose and signpost a maximum-speed-limit of 10mph on surfaced haul routes and work areas (if long haul routes are required these speeds may be increased with suitable additional control measures provided, subject to the approval of the nominated undertaker and with the agreement of the local authority, where appropriate).	Н
Produce a Construction Logistics Plan to manage the sustainable delivery of goods and materials.	н
Implement a Travel Plan that supports and encourages sustainable travel (public transport, cycling, walking, and car-sharing).	Н
Loading of material into lorries within designated bay.	Н
Plant working on site to have exhausts positioned such that the risk of re- suspension of ground dust is minimised (exhausts should preferably point upwards), where reasonably practicable.	н
Ensure all vehicles carrying loose or potentially dusty material to or from the site are fully sheeted.	н
Use ultra-low sulphur fuels in plant and vehicles.	Н
Operations	
Only use cutting, grinding or sawing equipment fitted or in conjunction with suitable dust suppression techniques such as water sprays or local extraction, e.g. suitable local exhaust ventilation systems.	н
Ensure an adequate water supply on the site for effective dust/particulate matter mitigation (using recycled water where possible).	н
Use enclosed chutes, conveyors and covered skips.	н
Minimise drop heights from conveyors, loading shovels, hoppers and other loading or handling equipment and use fine water sprays on such equipment wherever appropriate.	н
Ensure equipment is readily available on site to clean any dry spillages and clean up spillages as soon as reasonably practicable after the event using wet cleaning methods.	н
Waste Management	
Reuse and recycle waste to reduce dust from waste materials	Н
Avoid bonfires and burning of waste materials.	Н
Measures Specific to Demolition	
Soft strip inside buildings before demolition (retaining walls and windows in the rest of the building where possible, to provide a screen against dust)	Н
Ensure water suppression is used during demolition operations.	Н
Avoid explosive blasting, using appropriate manual or mechanical alternatives.	н

Mitigation Measure	Highly Recommended (H) / Desirable (D)
Bag and remove any biological debris or damp down such material before demolition.	Н
Measures Specific to Earthworks	
No specific measures are recommended as the site is Low Risk, however, general good practice measures should be implemented.	-
Measures Specific to Construction	
Avoid scabbling (roughening of concrete surfaces) if possible	Н
Ensure sand and other aggregates are stored in bunded areas and are not allowed to dry out, unless this is required for a particular process, in which case ensure that appropriate additional control measures are in place	Н
Ensure bulk cement and other fine powder materials are delivered in enclosed tankers and stored in silos with suitable emission control systems to prevent escape of material and overfilling during delivery.	н
For smaller supplies of fine powder materials ensure bags are sealed after use and stored appropriately to prevent dust.	D
Measures Specific to Trackout	
Regularly use a water-assisted dust sweeper on the access and local roads, as necessary, to remove any material tracked out of the site.	Н
Avoid dry sweeping of large areas.	Н
Ensure vehicles entering and leaving sites are securely covered to prevent escape of materials during transport.	н
Record all inspections of haul routes and any subsequent action in a site log book.	Н
Install hard surfaced haul routes, which are regularly damped down with fixed or mobile sprinkler systems and regularly cleaned.	Н
Inspect haul routes for integrity and instigate necessary repairs to the surface as soon as reasonably practicable	Н
Implement a wheel washing system (with rumble grids to dislodge accumulated dust and mud prior to leaving the site where reasonably practicable).	н
Ensure there is an adequate area of hard surfaced road between the wheel wash facility and the site exit, wherever site size and layout permits.	Н
Access gates to be located at least 10m from receptors where possible.	Н
Apply dust suppressants to locations where a large volume of vehicles enter and exit the construction site	н



Oriel-london.org.uk







